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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9544 1.S00.S52.334S Ext 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Accesx: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhx.nh,gov

May 23. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (VC#177575-B001), Contoocook, NH, to
continue to provide transitional housing services for adults who have severe mental illness or
severe and persistent mental illness, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the
price limitation by $6,372,800 from $4,479,800 to $10,852,600 and extending the completion date
from June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 15, 2020, Item #16
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 23, 2020, item
#15.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-092-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$2,582,800 $0 $2,582,800

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$1,897,000 $0 $1,897,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$0 $2,997,000 $2,997,000

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$0 $3,375,800 $3,375,800

Total $4,479,800 $6,372,800 $10,852,600

6t^

The Department of Health and Human Servieee'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arxJ the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue operation of a transitional housing program for
adults who have severe mental illness or severe and persistent mental Illness; are eligible for
community mental health services at a Community Mental Health Center, as defined in New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 401; and who no longer meet the level of care provided by
New Hampshire Hospital or Designated Receiving Facilities. With successful transitions of these
individuals to transitional housing, beds at New Hampshire Hospital and Designated Receiving
Facilities continue to be available for individuals in need of and waiting for the level of care
provided at those facilities. This request also includes the addition of dedicated housing
specialists within the transitional housing program who will assist individuals ready to transition to
independent living by creating plans and applying for permanent housing options.

Approximately 100 individuals will be served each State Fiscal Year.

Individuals, aged 18 years and older, who participate in the transitional housing program,
will continue to receive the necessary sen/ices to support and promote rehabilitation that
facilitates a transition to independent living in the community. Program senrices include
psychiatric services, medication management, clinical services, medical service, targeted case
management, specialized and co-occurring treatment services, vocational and day treatment
services, and support for community connectedness and family involvement.

The Department will continue to monitor contracted senrices using the following
performance measures:

• Quarterly meetings to review submitted reports that outline the number of beds
occupied programmatic services provided to each individual, each individual's
progress towards independent living, length of stay for each individual served, and
incoming cases.

• Annual review of the effectiveness of services measured using the Adult Needs and
Strengths Assessment, or other approved evidence-based assessment.

•  Evaluation of individual service encounter data submitted through the Department's
Phoenix reporting system.

•  Review of monthly Balance Sheet and Proftt and Loss statements for ongoing .
evaluation of fiscal integrity.

•  Engagement in financial and programmatic audits to ensure fiscal integrity is
maintained and programming is meeting the needs of the individuals served.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions .to Standard Contract Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two
(2) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request 76 Transitional Housing
Program beds will no longer be available to individuals in need of transitional residential treatment
services who are transitioning from New Hampshire Hospital or a designated receiving facility to
the community which, in tum, limits the availability of beds for individuals awaiting inpatient
hospital services across the State.

Area served: Statewide



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D5DB10C-C391-4485-9F99-3586930BAFDA

His Exceflency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Coundl
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Source of Funds: Genera! Funds

Respectfully submitted,

fv-

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Transitional Housing Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and NFI North, Inc.,
("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 15, 2020, (Item #16), as amended on September 23, 2020, (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Paragraph 1, Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions, Subparagraph
1.2., the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor
and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2024

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

- $10,852,600

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1. Statement of Work, by adding Subsection 1.23, to
read:

1.23. Housing Specialist Services

1.23.1 The Contractor shall assist individuals with completing applications to all housing
programs the individual may be eligible for, including but not limited to. Housing
Bridge Subsidy Program, Integrative Voucher Housing Program, and Housing
Choice Voucher Program.

1.23.2 The Contractor shall complete criminal background checks and registered criminal
offender checks for all individuals, as needed, for housing applications.

1.23.3 The Contractor shall collaborate with the individual to create a housing plan, which
shall include, but is not limited to:

1.23.3.1 Housing history and community of choice preferences.

1.23.3.2 Barriers to housing, including Identified solutions.

1.23.3.3 Initial.rental needs and resources.

1.23.3.4 Benefits eligibility and status.

1.23.3.5 Information regarding community services as requested and needed,

which may include, but is not limited to:

1.23.3.5.1 Supportive sen/ices.

NFI North Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
V7T77U27

SS-2021-D8H-03-TRANS-01-A02 Page 1 of 5 Date
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1.23.3.5.2 Substance use disorder treatment.

1.23.3.5.3 Behavioral health care; psychiatric health care.

1.23.3.5.4 Primary and medical health care.

1.23.3.5.5 Transportation services.

1.23.3.5.6 Resources for obtaining groceries and other needed

household items.

1.23.4 The Contractor shall assist the individual with understanding tenant rights and
obligations, fair housing laws, and the role of landlords.

1.23.5 The Contractor shall assist the Individual with identifying appropriate housing and
with contacting potential landlords, as appropriate or as requested by the individual.

1.23.6 The Contractor shall attend appointments and meetings with the individual and the
rental agency or renting landlord to negotiate rent, utilities, lease provisions, and to
ensure the individual secures leases in their own name, with full rights of tenancy.

1.23.7 The Contractor shall ensure successful transition to independent housing by
providing support to individuals and landlords for no less than six (6) consecutive
months after discharge.

1.23.8 The Contractor shall participate in monthly compliance meetings with the
Department, at the discretion of the Department.

1.23.9 The Contractor shall ensure their housing specialist participates in all trainings
conducted by either New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority or the Department,
as requested by the Department.

5. . Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, Subsection 3.4., to read;

3.4. For individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the services they receive and
for operational costs contained in Exhibit C-1, Amendment 1 Budget, through Exhibit C-4,
Amendment 2, SFY2024 Budget for which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek
reimbursement from an insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor vyill directly bill the
Department to access contract funds provided through this Agreement.

3.4.1. Invoices of this nature shall include general ledger detail indicating the Department is
only being invoiced for net expenses, shall only be reimbursed up to the current
Medicaid rate for the services provided and contain the following items for each client
and line item of service:

3.4.1.1. First and last name of client.

3.4.1.2. Date of birth.

3.4.1.3. Medicaid ID number.

3.4.1.4. Date of Service identifying date, units, and any possible third-party
reimbursement received.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4 to read:

4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as specified
in Exhibit C-1, Amendment 1 Budget through Exhibit 0-4, Amendment 2 Budget.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 5 to read:

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting documents to the DepartmeoLep later
than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the month in which tne^n/ices

NFI North. Inc. A-S-1.2 Conlractor Initials ̂
5/24/2022

SS-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A02 Page 2 of 5 Date _____
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were provided. The Contractor shall:

5.1. Ensure the invoice is submitted in a form that is provided by the Department or is
otherwise acceptable to the Department.

5.2. Ensure the invoice identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

5.3. Provide supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice that may
Include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and
proof of expenditure, as applicable.

5.4. Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the
supporting documentation for authorized expenses, in order to initiate payment.

8. Add Exhibit C-3, Amendment 2. SFY2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit 0-4, Amendment 2. SFY2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

NFI North, Inc.

SS-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A02

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 5

Contractor Initials

Date
5/24/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/24/2022

Date

OocuStgn«d by:

oooo4oo**e.,

Name:

Title: Director

5/24/2022

Date

NFI North, Inc.
—OocuSigncd by:

f(wL
^ame:°^-W-gann

Title: Executive Director

NFI North, Inc.

SS-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A02

A-S-1.2

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSlgnAd by:

5/26/2022

Date Name: Guarino
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date • Name:

Title:

NFI North, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A02 Page 5 of 5
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ExtUM C-3. AfnaodmMit 2. SFY 2023 BudfOI

Now Hampohiro Oopartmont of Hoalth and Human Sarvlces

Cantraetet Nam*: NFI North. Inc.

Proiaet Tllta; TraniHIonalHousIno Preoram*

Budgat ParM: Srr2tl23 mtion ■ 0000033

Tola Prooram Coal Contractor Shara 1 Match Fundad bv 0HH8 contract ahara

DIraci Indlrael Total Olrael Indlrael Total Diraet Indlract Total

j

1

7.098.659.72 3 709.865 97 3 7,808,525 69 3 5.590.t80.18 3 754.825.23 3 6.144.805 41 3 1.708.479.53 3 170,847.95 3 1.879.327.49

tl.ei6.e3S.I2 3 19l,e6}.81 3 2.108.301.04 3 1.455,354,75 3 203,749.66 3 1,659,104.41 3 461,283.38 3 46.128 34 3 507,411.71

«7B9.3&2.0e 3 78,935.21 3 808,287.26 3 509,376.70 3 83.913.02 3 683.291.71 3 169.973.36 3 18.997.34 3 208,970.69

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

se.120.10 3 612.01 3 8.732.11 3 4.647.18 3 650.60 3 5.297.78 3 1.472.92 3 147.29 3 1,620.22

stoo.oo 3 80.00 3 880.00 3 607.46 3 85 04 3 692.51 3 192.54 3 19.25 3 211.79

3365.422.27 3 36,542.23 3 401.964.50 3 277.476.09 3 38,84665 3 316.322.75 3 87.946.18 3 8.794 62 3 96.740.80

3 3 3- 3 3 . 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 •

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

351.200 00 3 5,120 00 3 56.320.00 3 38,877.70 3 5.442.68 3 44.320.57 3 12.322.30 1.232.23 3 13.554.53

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

323.304.00 3 2.330.40 3 25.634.40 3 17.69543 3 2.477.36 3 20.172.79 3 5.608.57 560.86 3 6.16943

S. Traval 372.366.21 3 7.236 62 3 79.802.83 3 54.94984 3 7.692.98 3 62,642.81 3 17,418.38 1.741.64 3 19.156.01

3357.640.67 3 35.784 07 3 303.624.74 3 271.719.16 3 38.040 68 3 309.759.84 3 86.121.51 8.812.15 3

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Taieorione 357,120.00 3 5.712.00 3 62.832.00 3 43.372.93 3 6.072.21 3 49,445.14 3 13.747.07 1.374.7t 3

31.500.00 3 150.00 3 1.650.00 3 1.139 00 3 159.46 3 1,298.45 3 361.01 36.10 3

31.640.00 3 164 00 3 1.804 00 3 1.245.30 3 174.34 3 1.419.64 3 394.70 39.47 3 434.17

310,000.00 3 1,000 00 3 11.00000 3 7.593.30 3 1.063.06 3 8.656.36 3 2.406.70 240.67 3

3116.820.52 3 11.882 05 3 130.702.57 3 90.223.99 3 12.631.36 3 102.855.34 3 28.596 53 2.859 65 3

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

33.737,00 3 373.70 3 4.110.70 3 2.837.62 3 397.27 3 3,234.88 3 899.38 89.94 3 989.32

312.250.00 3 1.225.00 3 13.47500 3 9.301.79 3 1.302.25 3 10.604.04 3 2.948 21 204.82 3

344.205.00 3 4.420.50 3 48.625.50 3 33.566.18 3 4.89927 3 38.265 4 5 3 10.638 82 1.063 88 3 11.702.70

12. SuttcontraaVAaraomania 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

1

1

1

1

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

3389.480 65 3 38.948 09 3 428.428.94 3 295.744.49 3 41.404.23 3 337,148.72 3 93.738 36 9.373.64 3 103.109.99

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

TOTAL 3 11,320.456.53 t 1.132.043.65 3 12.452.502.18 3 6.595.911.07 3 1,303.427.55 3 9.799.338.82 3 2.724445.45 272.454.55 3 2.997,000.00

tndiraci At A ParcanI o< Olraci

NFI North, Inc.

5S-202t-OBH-03-TRANS4>1-A02

EjMM C-3. Amenomartt 2. SFY 2023 Budgal

Pasa io« t

Contractor MiUals.

5/24/2022
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Ejthlbtl C-4, AflMntfnMnt 2, SFY 7024

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

CORtraeter Name: NF) Heclh, Inc.

Froi*ct Tllta; TraiwHIonal Housing Programs

OudgM Pariod; SPY2024 7/1/202) - SaW2024

Tola Proeram Coal Contractor Share / Match Fundwl bv DHHS eantrael ahara

Oirael Indlraei Total Oirael Indkaet TMal Olraci Indlraet ToUl

1. Toial Satarv/Waaas S 7,370.313.33 3 737.931.33 3 6.117.244 66 3 5 386 424 94 3 754,099.49 3 8.140.524.44 3 1,992.608.39 199.288 64 3 2 192.177.23

2. Emploiaa Benalits 31.902.414.60 3 199.241.46 3 2.191.656.06 3 1.454,343.10 3 203,608.03 3 1,857,951.13 3 538.071.50 53,807.16 3 501,678.00

3. Conaulanas 37ee.6S2.)3 3 78,965.23 3 668.617.56 3 605.41065 3 84.757.49 3 690.168.14 3 164,241.68 18.424.17 3 202.665.85

m

1.

1

1

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Rantal 36,120.10 3 612.01 3 6,732.11 3 4,692.16 3 656.90 3 5.349 06 3 1.427.94 142.79 3 1,570.74

Raoair and Uaintenanca 3800.00 3 60.00 3 880.00 5 613,34 3 65.87 3 899.21 3 180 66 1867 3 205.32

Purcnata/Oaoraeiatlon 3365.422.27 3 36.542.23 3 401.964,50 3 280,161.95 3 39.22267 3 319.384.62 3 85,260.32 6,526.03 3 93.786.36

S. SuDOlies: 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Educational 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 6

tab 3 3 3 3 5 3 3 3 3

Phsfinacv 351.200.00 3 5.120.00 3 56.320 00 3 39.254 02 3 5.495 56 3 44.749.56 3 11,945.98 3- 1.194 60 3 13.140.56

Medical 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Oilica 323.304.00 3 2.330.40 3 25.634.40 3 17,866.71 3 2.501.34 3 20.366.05 3 5,437.29 543.73 3 5.961.02

e. Travel 372.366.21 3 7,236 62 3 79.602.63 3 55.481.73 3 7.767,44 3 63.249,17 3 10,864.48 1.666.45 3 18.572.93

7. Occuoancv 3357.640.67 3 35,784.07 3 393.624.74 3 274.349.29 3 38.408.90 3 312.758.19 3 83.491.39 8.349.14 3 91.840.52

t. Curran Ememas 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Taleonona 357,120.00 3 5,71200 3 62.832.00 3 43,792.76 3 6.130.99 3 49.923.75 3 13,327.24 1.332.72 3 14.859.96

Poslaoa 31.500.00 3 150.00 3 1.65000 3 1.150 02 3 161.00 3 1,311.02 3 349.98 35 00 3 364.98

SubserioMns 31,640.00 3 164.00 3 1.804.00 3 1,257.36 3 178.03 3 1.433.38 3 362.64 38.26 3 420.91

310.000.00 3 1,000.00 3 11.000.00 3 7.666 80 3 1.073.35 3 8.740.15 3 2,333.20 233.32 3 2.506 52

kiaursnca 3118.820.52 3 11,U2.05 3 130,702.57 3 91.097.32 3 12.753.62 3 103,650.94 3 27.723 20 2.772.32 3 30.495.52

Board Eioanaas 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

e. Software 33.737.00 3 373.70 3 4.110.70 3 2.865 08 3 401,11 3 3.266.19 3 871.92 67.19 3 959.11

10. Marliatlna/Communacatiofts 312.250.00 3 1,225 00 3 13.47500 3 6,391.63 3 1.314.06 3 10.706.69 3 2.858.17 285.62 3 3.143.99

11. Sun Education and TraMna 344.205.00 3 4,420.50 3 48.625.50 3 33.891 09 3 4.744.75 3 38.035 84 3 10,313.91 1,031.39 3 11.345.30

12, Sul>Cdntra<*'«'4araamania 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

1). Od>ar($i>ecj|icdau4MTundaiorv): 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

ConsumaUea Hood, tiousanold suoolies etc) 3389.650.10 3 38,965 02 3 428.615.21 3 298.737.01 3 41,823.18 3 340.500.10 3 90,013.18 9.091.32 3 100.004.50

3 3 5 3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

TOTAL 3 11,677.358,23 3 1,167,735.62 3 12.645.09165 3 8,608.447,14 3 1.205.182.60 3 9.813,629,74 3 . 3,068.909.08 306.890.02 3 3,375,600,00

indltad As A Pareani ol Diraet

NFI NorU). Inc.

SS-202t-CBH^TRANS4l-A02

EsMbS C-3. Amandmem 2. SFY 2023 Budgal

Page 1 o« I

Consractar Mttisb

377^/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretan' of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NFl NORTH, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 06, 1992. 1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secreiaiy of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this oflice is

concerned.

Business ID: 175745

Certificate Number: 0005764736

SJ
%

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.ved

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 22nd day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

SccretarN' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Dellie ChamDaane ^ , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

llama duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of NFI North. Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on March 28th 2022 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Paul L Dann. PhD. Executive Director (may list more than one person)
{Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of NFI North, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dellie CAmmaMe
Dated: 5/23/22 p«pitch*nn>Jin« iwiy :6.

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dellie Champagne
Title: Clerk

Rev. 03/24/20
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Certif.ofAuthorityforCorp.orLLC
Final Audit Report 2022-05-23

Created; 2022-05-23

By; Paul Dann (pauldann@nafl.com)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID; CBJCHBCAABAAHPKLIZMyLUZJoerNpeeGnlHnORQcXsX

"Certif.ofAuthorityforCorp.orLLC" History

f!) Document created by Paul Dann (pauldann@nafi.com)
2022-05-23 - 2:03:44 PM GMT- IP address: 76.179.114.106

^ Document emailed to Dellie Champagne (dchampagne@savechildren.org) for signature

2022-05-23 - 2:04:18 Pf^ GMT

Q Email viewed by Dellie Champagne (dchampagne@savechildren.org)

2022-05-23 - 2:23:53 PM GMT- IP address: 104.47.59.254

^ Document e-signed by Dellie Champagne (dchampagne@savechildren.org)
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ACORD.. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

5/25/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does hot confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

12 Gill Street Suite 5500

Woburn, MA 01801

855 874-0123

Susan Kania

r>I)8^N\.Exti: 855 874-0123 f>5c.Noi: 781-376-5035

ADDRESS; Susan.Kanla@usl.eom
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

NFI North Inc.

40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

INSURER B North River Insurance Company 21105

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL

!!iS&
SUBR

utm POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/OP/mni'l
POLICY EXP

(MM/DP/mY) LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

PHPK2355958 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE

.^ISES TEa^co^^nca)
MEO EXP (Ary one peraon)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I I JECT I I LOC
OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP ACG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea eccidenn

$1.000.000

$1.000.000

$5.000

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

~x ANY AUTO

PHPK2355953 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 si ,000.000

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

XComp $1,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

Coll $1,000

BODILY INJURY (Per acddenl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aecklentt •

UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS UAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB795259 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000.000

AGGREGATE $10,000.000

X RETENTION $10000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABILmr y, „
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER^XECUTIVE,
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory In NN)
If yes. describe urxJer
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

4067369658 07/01/2021 07/01/2022
V PER
A STATUTE

OTH-
£B_

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLCY LIMIT $1,000,000

Professional

Abuse

PHPK2355958

PHPK2355958

01/01/2022

01/01/2022

01/01/2023

01/01/2023

1MIU3MIL

1MIU3M1L

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddlUonal RemarVs Schedule, may be attached If more apace Is requlrsd)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Oept Health & Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
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NFI North Mission Statement

Inspiring and empowering people to reach their full
potential so that they can live successfully within their

own home and community
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KPMG LLP

Two Financial Center

60 South Street

Boston. MA 02111

Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Directors

NFI North, inc.:

Report on the Financiai Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (NFIN), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors'Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financiai audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NFIN as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in note 1 to the financiai statements, in 2021, NFIN adopted Accounting Standards Update
No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), as amended. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

KPMG LLP a liniilwd I'atiillfv pflftrariilut) J trflmbsr liini of
?h» KPMG n'oPol owl'l' on o' nuiaoandsnt tlirna aIIjIuiM vvitli
KPMG Iniemat oiifli Llmliefl. t utivjts Eno'i*" c«wiwiiv itm iad bv
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other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 13, 2021 on
our consideration of NFIN's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of NFIN's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering NFIN's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

llt>

October 13, 2021
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NFI NORTH. INC.

Statement of Financial Position

June 30. 2021

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Due from affiliate {note 8)
Investments (note 4)

Total current assets

Property and equipment (note 5);
Land

Buildings and improvements
Equipment and furnishings
Motor vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Lease right-of-use assets (note 6)

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (note 5)
Current portion of operating lease liabilities (note 6)
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 5)
Due to affiliate long-term (note 8)
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion (note 6)
Other liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

4,271,586

3,909,136

131,777

84,189

3,310,091

11,706,779

685,632

9,271,794

620,547

868,985

11,446,958

(6,704,377)

4,742,581

50,193

12,493

$  16,512,046

346,571

30,440

65,784

1,439,513
808,697

205,998

2,897,003

2,092,644
202,303

19,753

377,167

2,691,867

5,588,870

10,680,101

243,075

10,923,176

$  16,512,046

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2021

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions;
Revenues and other support:

Contracts, net $ 34,366,090
Contributions:

In-kind 949,252

Interest and dividends 69,007

Miscellaneous (492)

35,383,857

Net assets released from restrictions 11,886

Total revenues and other support 35,395,743

Expenses:
Program services 28,939,446
Supporting services (note 8) 3,357,535

Total expenses 32,296,981

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions before nonoperating activities 3,098,762

Nonoperating activities:
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments 217,428

Gain on sale of property and equipment 50,812

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 3,367,002

Changes in net assets with donor restrictions:
Contributions and grants 60,820
Net assets released from restrictions (11,886)

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 48,934

Increase in net assets 3,415,936

Net assets at beginning of year 7,507,240

Net assets at end of year $ 10,923,176

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH. INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended June 30, 2021

Program Supporting

services services Total

Personnel expenses:
Salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits $  20,431,305 1,640,793 22,072,098

Other expenses:
Contracted services 3,712,494 1,393,045 5,105,539
Other direct costs 1,251,479 159,703. 1,411,182

In-kind ,  949,252 — 949,252

Consumables 866,381 — 866,381

Occupancy 684,923 34,728 719,651

Equipment 253,672 55,271 308,943

Transportation 201,784 17,262 219,046

Interest 89,131 7,008 96,139

8,009,116 1,667,017 9,676,133

Depreciation and amortization 499,025 49,725 548,750

Total expenses $  28,939,446 3,357,535 32,296,981

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments
Amortization of right-of-use asset
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Due from affiliate

Other assets

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses
Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

Operating lease liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

Supplemental data:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of operating lease liabilities

3,415,936

548,750

(50,812)

(217,428)
43,034

(31,248)

(56,686)
(58,426)

757

(108,175)
575,364

295,005

(7.539)
(106,793)
(43,034)

4,198,705

(1,452.692)

(1,807,378)
51,701

275,515

(2,932,854)

(198,156)

(198,156)

1,067,695

3,203,891

4,271,586

96,139

46,748

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

NFI North, Inc. (NFIN) is a not-for-profit organization whose purpose is to provide community-based social
services to individuals and their families. NFIN is a subsidiary of North American Family Institute, Inc.
(NAFI), which Is the sole member of NFIN's board of directors. Substantially all of NFIN's revenues are
derived from services contracted with the States of Maine and New Hampshire Departments of Human
Services, Children, Youth and Families, Medicaid, private insurers, and local public school districts.

(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, have
been prepared to focus on NFIN as a whole and to present balances and transactions according to the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are
classified as follows;

With donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met by
actions of NFIN and/or the passage of time.

Without donor restrictions - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related
assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/or time restrictions. Expenses are reported as
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on investments and other assets

or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their
use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law. Expirations of restrictions on net assets with donor
restrictions are reported as reclassiftcations between the applicable classes of net assets. Expirations
of restrictions with donor restrictions occur when donor-imposed stipulated purposes have been
accomplished and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed. If an expense is incurred for a purpose for
which both net assets with and without donor restrictions are available, a donor-imposed restriction is

fulfilled to the extent of the expense incurred unless the expense is for a purpose that is directly
attributable to another specified external source of revenue.

(b) Revenue from Confracfs with Customers

Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
(ASC Topic 606), revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the promised
goods or services is transferred in ah amount that reflects the consideration to which we expect to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services (i.e., the transaction price).

Revenues from contracts are primarily derived from cost reimbursement, per diem and fee-for service
contracts. Cost reimbursement contracts are recognized with expenses being reimbursed for services
delivered over the course of client enrollment period which is generally as expenses are incurred. Rate
based contracts are recognized with expenses being reimbursed for services delivered over the course
of client stay based on an established rate with the related funding source which is generally when
services are provided. Revenues from contracts consisted of 16% for cost reimbursement contracts
and 84% for rate-based contracts for the year ended June 30, 2021.

(Continued)
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NFI NORTH. INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2021

(c) Income Taxes

NFIN is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and is
generally exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(a). NFIN has taken no significant uncertain
tax positions.

(d) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(e) Concentration of Risk

NFIN receives the majority of its funding from state contracts that are renewable annually. Legislative
budgets could significantly impact NFIN's ability to start new programs and to continue existing
programs.

(f). Cash and Equivalents

All short-term investments with an original maturity at purchase of three months or less are considered
cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows. Cash and equivalents within investment
accounts are considered to be investments for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated property, at fair value at the
date of gift. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Buildings and improvements 15-33.3 years
Equipment and furnishings 2-10 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated or amortized according to the organization's normal
depreciation policy except that the time period shall be the shorter of: 1) the useful life of the leasehold
improvements, or 2) the remaining years of the lease. The remaining years of the lease include the
years in the lease renewals that are reasonably assured.

(h) Self-Insurance

NFIN is self-insured for employee medical healthcare costs. As of June 30, 2021, the estimated liability
for healthcare claims incurred but not yet reported or paid was $128,172 and is included in accrued
payroll and related liabilities in the accompanying statement of financial position.

(Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2021

(i) In-Kind Contributions

In-kind contributions are generally recognized at fair value on the date received. During fiscal 2021,
NFIN received in-kind contributions of rent, equipment and furnishings, and consumables amounting to
$949,252.

(j) fair VaiuB of Financial Instruments

Fair value represents the price that NFIN would receive upon the sale of an asset or paid upon the
transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the measurement date.
NAFI uses a three-tier hierarchy to categorize those assets and liabilities based on those valuation
methodologies employed. The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in the three broad levels
listed below.

•  Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.

•  Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar financial
instruments, interest rates, credit risk, etc.).

•  Level 3 - significant unobservable inputs (including NFIN's own assumptions in determining the fair
value of financial instruments).

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 Inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3
inputs. NFIN utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimizes
the use of unobservable inputs to the.extent possible.

(k) Leasing

NFIN determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. NFIN has leases under which it is obligated
as a lessee. Operating leases as a lessee are included In right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the
statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets represent NFIN's right to use an underlying asset for the lease term. Lease
liabilities represent NFIN's liability to make lease payments arising from the lease. Operating
right-of-use assets'and related obligations are recognized at commencement date based on the
present value of lease payments over the lease term discounted using an appropriate incremental
borrowing rate. The Incremental borrowing rate is based on the information available at
commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. The value of an option to
extend or terminate a lease is reflected to the extent it is reasonably certain management will exercise
that option.

(I) Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), as amended, that requires,
among other things, a lessee to recognize a right-of-use asset representing an entity's right to use the
underlying asset for the lease term and a liability for lease payments on the balance sheet, regardless
of classification of a lease as an operating or finance lease.

(Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2021

NAFI adopted the following practical expedients and elected the following accounting policies related to
this standard;

-  Elected not to reassess prior conclusions related to the identification, classification, and accounting
for indirect costs for leases that commenced prior to July 1, 2020; .

-  Elected to utilize a risk-free rate (e.g. U.S. Treasury bill rate) to discount the lease payments;

-  Elected the short-term lease accounting policy allowing lessees not to recognize right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities with a term of twelve months or less; and

-  Elected not to separate lease and non-lease components for certain equipment lease asset
categories.

NFIN adopted ASU 2016-02 in fiscal year 2021 using the modified retrospective approach. Right-of-use
assets and related lease obligations of $93,228 and $93,228 were recognized as of July 1, 2020 and
are included in the statement of financial position. The guidance did not materially impact NFIN's
results of operations.

(m) C0VID'19 Pandemic

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus (COVlD-19) a pandemic.
NFIN continues to receive funding from state and federal contracts, and is able to continue its
operations in providing community-based social services to individuals and their families. NFIN
received emergency funding from the States of Maine and New Hampshire, to assist potential
additional costs associated with the COVID-19 pandemic.

(n) Subsequent Events

NFIN has evaluated events subsequent to June 30, 2021 and through October 13, 2021, which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued. NFIN has determined there are no

material events that would require recognition or disclosure in this report through this date.

(2) Financial Asset arid Liquidity Resources

As of June 30, 2021, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general
expenditures, such as operating expenses and scheduled principal payments on debt, were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,028,511
Accounts receivable, net 3,909,136

Investments 3,310,091

Due from affiliate 84,189

Total financial assets available within one year $ ___JJ^331^92^

As part of the NFIN's liquidity management, NFIN maintains working capital lines of credit, which provides
liquidity available to meet general expenditures as liabilities and other obligation come due.

10 (Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2021

(3) Line of Credit

NAFI makes available to its subsidiaries, including NFIN, NAFI Connecticut. Inc. (NAFICT). NFI Vermont.
Inc. (NF(V) and NFI Massachusetts, Inc. (NFI), an on demand $8,000,000 line of credit from TD Bank. The
line of credit bears interest at a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, plus
0.50% per annum, (3.75% as of June 30, 2021). Borrowings under the line are jointly guaranteed by NAFI,
NFIN, NAFICT, NFIV and NFI and are coliateralized by substantially all of their assets.

Borrowings under the line of credit are due upon demand, and the line is subject to annual renewal. As of
June 30. 2021, there were no borrowings outstanding under this line of credit.

In addition, for the year ended June 30, 2021, NAFI has entered into Letter of Credit agreements with TD
Bank for the year ended June 30, 2021 for a total of $1.045.893. The Letter of Credit agreements can be
utilized by all subsidiaries in the aggregate of $8,000,000 and are not coliateralized by additional cash. The
Letter of Credit agreements are a requirement of NAFI's workers' compensation carrier.

(4) investments

Investments are carried at fair value. Investments at June 30, 2021 consisted of the following;

Equities $ 1,481,457

Cash and equivalents 1,001.084

Corporate bonds 827,550

$  3,310,091

All investments are valued using Level 1 inputs in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, except
corporate bonds which are considered Level 2. There were no transfers between fair value levels during
the year.

(5) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2021 consisted of the following:

Fiscal year

Type and interest rate as of June 30. 2021 due Amount

Mortgages payable, secured by real estate:
0.00%-8.00% fixed 2022-2031 $ 2,401,837

Vehicle notes secured by automobiles:
0.00%-8.59% fixed 2022-2024 37,378

Total long-term debt 2,439,215

Less: current portion (346,571)

Total long-term debt, net of current portion $ 2,092,644

11 (Continued)
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NFI NORTH. INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2021

Certain mortgages payable to housing authorities provide that a portion of the principal will be forgiven at
the end of the loan period if the underlying properties are used to provide housing in accordance with
stipulated conditions. In addition, certain mortgages payable contain various prepayment penalties.

NFIN is required to maintain certain debt service coverage ratios.

Scheduled repayments of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Amount due

346,571

122.463

125,811

124.464

211,693

1,508,213

2,439,215

Interest expense was $96,139 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

(6) Leases

NFIN is committed to annual payments under several long-term non-cancelable (except under certain
circumstances) operating leases for property, vehicles and equipment through fiscal year 2024.

Lease expense reported in occupancy and equipment in the statement of functional expenses amounted to

$47,009 for the year ended June 30, 2021, the components of which are as follows;

2021

Lease cost;

Operating lease expense
Short-term lease expense

Total lease expense

46,748
261

47,009

12 (Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

-  June 30, 2021

Payments due include options to extend leases that are reasonably certain through fiscal year 2024 and
are summarized below;

Amount due

Year ending June 30:
2022 $ 30,523

2023 17,098

2024 2,765

50,386

Less: amounts representing interest (643)

$  51,029

The weighted-average remaining lease term for operating leases is 21 months. The weighted average
discount rate for operating leases is 0.19%.

Rental expense amounted to $44,523 for the year ended June 30, 2021, including $44,134 of related party
property charges described in note 8. These expenses are included in occupancy and equipment expense
in the accompanying statement of functional expenses.

(7) Retirement Plan

NFIN has a qualified defined contribution retirement plan for eligible employees to which annual
contributions are made at the discretion of NFIN's board of directors. NFIN elected to contribute $249,912

for the year ended June 30, 2021. These expenses are included in employee benefits expense within the
accompanying statement of functional expenses.

(8) Related Party Transactions

North American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI), an affiliate, charges an administrative management fee for
supporting service costs that NAFI incurs on behalf of the subsidiaries. These allocated costs amounted to
$1,558,503 for the year ended June 30, 2021, and have been included in supporting services expenses in
the accompanying statement of activities and contracted services expenses within the statement of
functional expenses.

In addition, NFIN pays NAFI a property charge for usage of certain fixed assets of NAFI. This charge was
$44,134 for the year ended June 30, 2021, and has been included in program services expenses in the
accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses.

Cost reimbursement underpayments resulted in a balance due to NAFI as of June 30, 2021 in the amount
of $202,303. This amount has been" reported as due to affiliate in the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position and is expected to be received within one year.

13
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2021

Cost reimbursement overpayments have resulted in a balance due from NAFI as of June 30, 2021 in the
amount of $84,189. This amount has been reported as due from affiliate in the accompanying statement of
financial position and is expected to be paid within one year.

NAFI and affiliated corporations (NFIN, NFIVT, NAFICT and NFIM) may periodically make short term loans,
not to exceed one year, to its affiliated corporations, secured by documentation evidencing such
indebtedness. For the year ended June 30, 2021, there were no short-term loan transactions with NFIN.

14
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fiia
KPMG LLP

Two Financial Center

60 South Street

Boston. MA 02111

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (NFIN), which comprise
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 13, 2021. This report included an emphasis of matter paragraph
referring to NFIN's adoption of Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), as amended, in
2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NFIN's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NFIN's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of NFIN's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NFIN's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we perforrhed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

KPMG LLP a UwlJw.w lim.ied liotJifty partnaralvp sri'J J fnamtJSf li'iii oi
the KPMG n'oPsI O'flaiil79tofi ot "ifiiibei jMJunfO with
KPMG (iwnBt'ofiB' Llrriitsfl. a tirvo'# Erifiish coniiwiY "m.lsfl bv owraniM
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Me

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the NFIN's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the NFIN's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

October 13, 2021
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NFI NORTH, INC.
OFFICERS

Title Name Address

President
Suanne Nader

Educator ^SSSSSm

Treasurer

Bruce Farenwaid

CFO Duncrafl Inc

Clerk/Secretary
Dellie Champagne
Events

Coordinator/Teacher/Consumcr

Representative

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Address
Name

OccupatioD

Doug Giles Retired Fire Fighter/Organic
Farmer

Suanne Nader Educator

Dellie

Champagne
Events

CoordinatorATeacher/Consumer

Representative

Bruce Farenwaid CFO Duncraft Inc.

Dean L. Murray
Chief Compliance Officer and
VP Regulatory GE Capital-
Electric Company

Ashley
Walnwrlght Marketing Professional

Banking Industry

Terry Lochhcad
Retired Communications

Consultant

Terms; Until successors are duly elected and qualified. NOTE: No compensation for Members or
Directors As of: 2-28-2022
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EMFLOVMENT

Ptutt t. Datw, /Vi.O.

Dtiail: piiul(ian$t((^>n/i.cotu

present

Scpl IW7.
present

Sq4.1901
J.m IW.l

April 1980 -
Sc|^

N'H North, Conliwcook Nil

Executive Directnr

Rcs|X)nsible for the ovcrull management of this privnic non-profit
corporailon with u (Dial annual boUgct of 16-t' niltlton dollars. Developed
key programs and services to tuMress the need of state mandated child
protection, juvenile ju.siicc attd mental health and cducnilonul agencies within the
Nonhctn New England area. Worked with Hiwrd of Directors, agency
ninnagenicni and business sialTto ittsure coqioration's liscul ;«i programmatic
excellence. Provided regular consultation and truining to private and ptiblic
hitman scivicc organizations.

New England College, Hcnniker. NH

Part Time Lectunsr/Pragram Dircclur MS CMHC
Teaching In the college's Graduate Program in Clinical Mental Health
Counseling. Mnstcis in Human Services, Masters in Computer Intormaiion
Systdtis. Masters in Btisiiicss and Master's in Business Administmiion,
Dewlopcd numcfoiis courses. Taughj.oiu:«mpjs,.diiouglUiybrid.ltfni'ning as well

"a.s on line. Strong ability to u.sc technology in class as well as widtin online
pInllWms ^<00116111 reviews from students its well as itdmmlstralion. I racllilale
flinl oversee student capsioiKS a.s well as supervise prlmury research In tlK
graduate school. Past member of the curriculum commiuec, siraicgic planning
commince and current faculty representative to gi^nduaie couJicil.

NORIII AMERICAN FAMILY INSTl I'U Hi - Danvcrs. Massttchuseits

Director of CttUdmit and Family Services
Kespotwible tor tire Overall mannpcmcnl of children and rwnily services
loi a large nationally based non-profit human service aycncy. Developed
a cuchx of programs serving New hinmpshirc, MuiiK lurd Nordvcrn
Massachusetts. Directly responsible for oversight ofagency supervisors,
project development, conimcl negotiation, training nnd fiscal operations.
Developed core manogeincm truining for project dirccinrs, wrote
Proposals resulting In the addition of new projects, developed new and innovuiiN-c
sctviccS in the area ofwap around, tlicrapculic fostci carc. booK* ba.sed services
and resideiilinl treaunent.

NOU l MF.ASTERN FAMILY INSTITUTE • Danvers. M.A
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Ajfciicy Supervisor J'pf Adolescent Servicex (3/li7 - 9/91)
Proinoieci lo Ihis key mitiioiieiTieni position. Responsible for program
.supervision, praeioni dcvelopmenl. nnd overnH agency managcmcni
Cunclions including facility siiing, community acccpiancc, laciliiy
licensing, flee! management, ftscal mnnagemcni and contract ncgnliaiions with
various funding sources. Diioctly rcspotisibic for the opcrniions nt'si.x projects
representing n combined hiiilget million. Adcliiitinal ies)>onsibilllic.s
include the provision ol irnining ar.d support for other agency projects.

Pio^niin Director • North Crossing (12/83 • J/87)
Pi'omotcd lu develop and manage i\ icsideitlial School cinoiionally
Disturbed adolescents. This project included a staff of) 5 and an nnnuni
budget of 1380,000. Developed this accredited school iVoin the proposal
stage to full operation. Provided iraining and suppon to other agency
prujccts as well as ihe State of Vermont within the areas of program
development and stall'training. In Pcbruury of 1985 promoted to
supervi.sc 2 additional pipiccis with a staff of 10 and a 1325,000 budget.

PrcrScrci'tier - Crisis Jntervention Services (9/83 - 6/86)
Worked as part of a mobile crisis intervention team. Provided crisis
imcn-cmion services throughout five communities on an o|Kn referral
husis. Worked wilh urea services, police and community mcinlvrs to
provide prc-screening for voluntary and involuntary psychiatric
Iiospitali/'.diion, nientol status c.xams. crisis inHnagemeiu, rcfciral and
consultation. Provided communiry presentations on the topics of menial
-health and progi am scivices. - - - - -

Progrnni Director • Conunnnit)' iMng Project ond Adolescent
Dny Program (4/81 - 32/83)
Managed 2 mcnltil health program.^ with combined staff of 10 and a
budget of $335,000. Designed, orgnni/.ed, staffed and supervised n
ireaimeni program that achieved u high client success rate. Obtained
eonliacl funding from an additional stale agency niui from the stale of
Vermont. Consulted to agencies in the states of Maryland and New
Hampshiro on the dcN'clopmenI ttnd management of community-based
IreatmciU.

Caseworker - Foster Care Program (4/80 - 4/81)
Managed a caseload of adolescents commincd to the Deparimciu of Youth
Services. Provicled ongoing counseling and advocacy within the couits
and comnuiniiy. Developed u group activity component.

EDVCA nON
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2(H14 2008 Ph.D. in Human nnd Oiyanizalionftl DcvcUipmcnl
I'ieldiny Grndnatc Univt-rsiiy

2OO4-20U0 M-.A. ill Hiimnn and Ori;anixational Sysiems. ricldlng Graduak-
Univirrsiiy.

lOS) • I9X.1 Lamed r«0 crcdils lownui n Maslcr ul"r.diiciitiun in Human Service
Manngemcni. fiosion Univcrsiiy.

1^75 - 1979 Bachelor cl Science in Human Service wiih High Honors,
Noitlicaslcrn Universiiy. Dean's l.isi 1975-1979.

n rHI::R Rfc'I.ATCD HXPERIENCT.

Adjunci Kacully. l-Mnversii> or Kew Hnmpshire 2014-prcscm
RoukI Meml^er New Hampshire As.socinlion for rhe Blind, 2012 lo present
In.siiiuic for Social Innovation Research fellow 2010 to 2014

Don niishncll Scholarship Award for Organi/aiional niKl Social ("himge 2007
Vice Cliair Board of Managers Communiiy Provider Neik-ork 2003-2000
Socrciaiy Board ofManagei.s Conimuniiy Pio>"idcr NeiworK 199^7-2003
Riiard Member Mavcnwood Hcrilage Heights. Chair Planning Committee 2002, Vice Prcsideiii
o)' the Board of Directors 2006, i'residcnt noiird of Dirccinr 200R-201 I

Board Mcnibcr Maine Association of Mental Health Sciviccs 2001-present
i.cndcrship Nil class or200)
I'lesidHii Hopkinton Independent School Board of Directors 1999-2009
rormcr Massocluiseit.s'I .icensed •Social Worker • l ie. 300178

Clinician, Nurihcastern Family Center, Mclrosc Ma. 1988-1989
( onsuiiani. NliCMHS. Amcsbuiy. Ma. 1988-1990

Trainer. Community Programs Innovations 1986-1993

TRAININGS, WORKSHOPS AND PRESF.N I ATIONS (parlinl list)

The Resiliency Factor; Our Role in .Advancing Child nru) Youth Well Being- Keynote
Speaker
fluid and fanjjh Piox'Ider Network Annual Conrcrencc 2016

Wurkinji Allinnct: The Btiilding Blocks for Knsurlng Successful Outcomes
Child and Tamily Provider Network Annual Contcrcncc 2016

Heading with Vision Across and Within the Orgnui/ation
Sciuor Lcudcrsliip CouTcrencc Alliance for Strong Children and Pnmilics 2015

C ulrural Foundations in .Mculni Hciillh Practice

Nf) Noi ih Core Training 2lH 5

Conscioiis Organizations; Slorics and Practices from (he Nonprofit nnti For Profit Sector
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liilciniiiionul l.tf;Kler>hip Associiuion Cilohal Conl'ticncc ?{JI I

Supervision. Mnmgcmcul onil LcOilciship; Cross currcnis mtliin tliv mn nuitivi-
cunimunlry
Rhode IhlanU rsYchi)logic;il Ccnlcrs 20)4

\Vui-|q)lacc Oivcrsiiy ntxr Iticliision
Huiuan Ke>i>urcc Associaliun ol GrciUci' C'nocorU 2013

Cultui ol Diversity
McirlniaLk Cotiiuy l-loiiscofConeclions20l}

(ienerutivc l.cuiliTship
Tobias Leadership Institute 2012

Kinor^cnl lA'ticlcrship in Nonprorit Orgnnizaiions
Scniot Leadership C.'utirciciKO ACT-' 2012

LoMlcrship Devrlupincnl
NAl-1 National Conference 201 I

CcncrHti^'o Lciulcrsliip: Kxploring l.c:i(lcr.ship Development Within Orgniiizations and
Tonms

Senior Leadership Conference 2011

CuUurnl DiyiTslty in the CInssrooin . _
NLC Faculty Development Workshop 201 1

Win king AtllaiKC within the CInssrooin
Coatooeook School Summer 2008

Leadership Development Scmiiiar
Nl-I Leadership Developfncnt Program Spring'Sumincr 2008

Uehavlar Mtintigemcnt
NIT Nonh Core Tmininji 2007

Menulng Making tyiihin Organizations
NPI North Leadership Piolcssicnril Development 2006
Rcintegrolive Sen ices for Youth
DCYI-' amuiol Cuttfcicncc 2006

Difrieult People and Conflict (Vlaiiagcnicnt
DCVF An^^l.^l Ctrnfercncc 2006
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The Kulc ofStnry TcHin^ in LCiUlerirtiip
NAI'l Nalional Conference 2003

COURSES TAUGHT

Nen Entslund Collcfic Cniduotc nnd Continuing Studies

Muiilri-s in Hcnitii Cnrc (uil llircc credit coursti)

•  Stnieturc of Social Pioblenis

•  Long Icrm Care
•  Health Care Mnnagancnt

Musters III Community Mcntnl Henlth Counsdinc (three to four credit couiics)

• Mental Henith Monngemcni
• MuhtcuUttrai Issues in Mental Health Delivery
•  Career Development and Counseling
•  Rcscnrch Methods

• Capstone Faeiliuuion

Masters in Business Administrntion

•  Siraicgic Plnnningand Policy
•. Organi/JUipnol Monagcinem and Leadership . . ..
• Oigiini/ational Communicaiion, Negotiation and Connici Resolution
•  Strategic Cnpsione
• Organi/oitional Leadership and Change

Mnsto.ix in Hetilih Cure Management

•  Dynamics of NonprcRi Governance

Universitv of New Hampshire

Masters in Public Adniinbtration

• Organization and Monogcmcnt in the Ihiblic msd NiniiKofit Secinr
•  RfToclivc Change Monugeincnt

Htffifrducs A voUabtfi on Ramiifsx
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Luke Reynard, MBA

Executive team member with experience leading operations in behavioral health and (fisabllity
service systems.

NFI North. Inc.

Chief Operating Officer April 2021-Present

Resportsible for daily operations of aD agency programs
Lead arvj supen/ise aO strategic plan operations
Collatwrate with Executive LeadersNpteam on strategic initiatives and operational processes
Communicate with the CEO and Board of Directors on agency goals and initiatives
Represent NFI North with state partners and the general public
Oversee rtew business development arxJ strategic opportunities
Oversee relationships with vendors, subsidiari^, and partners

University of New Hampshire

Director of Operations, Center for START Services, Institute on Disability. July 2019-Apr 2021

•  Operatior^l leadership for START Mental Health arxi Intellectual DisabSity Program
•  Develop and implement strategic operating plans to align with UNH goals
•  Develop programmatic cost projection proposals for various state government systems
•  Member of the Institute on Disability at University of New Hampshire mar\agement team
•  Research and identify opportunities to leverage state and federal Medicaid and MCO

funds forprogrammatic use

Mv Health Mv Resources fMHMRI of Tarrant County 2005 through 2019

Chief Operating Officer of Disability Services May 20i7-Jurte 2019

•  Chief Operations Officer for Disability Services, leading services to 40004- people with
disabQitiesmonthty

•  Develq? strategic operating plans to achieve agency mandates
•  Responsible for dafly operations and supervbion of 500 fuD4ime staff
•  Respons^e for oversight for state funded Authority Operations
•  Responsible for operation of Provider function operations, including HCBS programs and ICF

homes

•  Develop and oversee $30 minion annual operations budget including 20M4- rt Medicaid funds
•  Lead development team and supervise first crisis Intervention and prevention program in

Texa$;expanded contract across the state for further implementation
o Award winner for Special Services to the START Nattonal Team

•  Establish cost analysis of program operations resulting in net operational increase of
revenuesexceedng 1M

•  Oversight of Hcxjsing Grants, Supported Enjoyment Operations, and Shelter Plus Care Programs
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•  Oversight of programs funded through Health Human Services Commission, Office of the
Governorand Center for Medicaid Services 1115 Waiver

Senior Program Director of Disability Services

Program Director

Program Manager

Program Specialist

Service Coordination

2012-17

2011-12

2010-11

2009-10

2005-09

Education

Master of Business Administration

Bachelor of Arts in Psychology

•  Minor-Criminal Justice

Community Leadership

University of Texas-Permian Basin

Texas State University

New Hampshire Children's Behavioral Health Workforce Development Leadership Team
•  State

Leadership Fort Worth, Class of 2016
•  Community engagement leadership development course designed to foster civic leadership

skillsand education opportunities

Samaritan House Board of Directors

•  Board member providing support for non-profit providing support services and residential
support to individuals with HIV/AIDS, Mental Illness, and other specialneeds

MH Housing Development of Tarrant County Board of Directors
•  Board member for the property management organization providing housing

supports toindividuals with mental illness

IDD Council of Tarrant County Board of Directors
•  Board member for non-profit community group with a mission of increasing awareness,

promotinginclusion and providing education about disabilities in the community

IDD Directors Consortium

•  Member of statewide leadership group of 39 Community Centers charged with policy
advisementand stakeholder response for more than 50,000 people with disabilities in Texas

Texas Health and Human Services STAR Kids Workgroup
•  Member legislatively appointed group charged with providing policy design for newly

implementedManaged Care platform for 180,000 children with disabilities in Texas

YMCA Soccer, Basketball, Baseball Coaching Volunteer

Henniker Youth Athletics, Assistant Coach

2013-2018

2019-present

Luke Reynard
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KRISTI VAZIFDAR

INftNCIALEKPERTlSE

FiDOnc'iQl Rfiporling

Caui and Credit

Monogentent

Budget Creation and
Analysn

Payroll Manogemenx

Stfotegic Planning

rinoncimi Tro'ining and

MonoQement

Accotinis Poyol}ie and

Receivable

PROFILE

A dynamic leam leader who leverages positive energy,
humor and keen inlelllgence lo inspire, motivaie. and

guide team members to optinial success.

Respected financial professional, with a proven record of
success driving operations for growth and maxlmltlng
cost efficiency.

Insightful and ethical MBA experienced with strategic
planning for, and management and analysis of. multi-
million dollar budgets.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

NFl,*Nonh, Inc., Contoocook, NH, FEBRUARY 2016 - PRESENT

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the
organUation's T8 miHiori dollar annual operating budget in our twenty programs across Maine and
New Hampshire and managing a staff of 7. Provides critical oversight over each aspect of financial
operations including budget creation and management.

Greater Nashua Menial Health Center at Community Council, Nashua, NH. DECEMBER 2015 -

FEBRUARY 2016

INTERIM FINANCE MANAGER

Reporiing to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial managemeni of Ihe
organization's 13 million dollar annual operating budget serving Hillsbofough County find managing a
staff of 10.

Key Accomplishments;

»  Provided program analysis lo advise on future direction of resources.
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•  Miinaee atcouniing and finance issues including monthly close, revenue recognition and
analysis, policy inierprelaiions, balance sheet reconciHalions and daily procliicl.vity of all
finances.

•  Consoltdated business team to save appioxltnately 18% of departrnentol personnel costs.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH. 2009 - fVlAY 2015

FINANCE DIRECTOR

Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the
oi^aniration's 3.5 million dollar annual operating budget serving dOOO visitors annually- Manage 2 full
time seasonal entployees and additional financial supervision of 5 seasonal employees

Key Accomplishments:

•  Prepare and manage the annual btidgei and all financial reports as needed by the CEO. Finance
Committee «mU Board of Directors.

•  Manage accounting and finance Issues including monthly close, Accotinis Receivable, Accounts
Payable, policy imerpretntlonj, balance sheet reconciliations and daily productivity of all
finances

•  Prepare firtancial siatomeols and reporting forCEO, Finance Committee and Board of Directors;
including monthly reconciliation of revenues and expenses, with appropriate variation
explanatio.n.s and analysis

•  Critically evaluate new. or renewal contracts and aisnual corporate insurance policies for
appropriateness.

•  Key contributor ol 3 year (2011 - 2013 and 2014 - 2016) strategic plans, authoring the financial
tactics. "" '

•  Developed and executed a weekly matrix to aisaiyre payroll for llOseasonal hourly staff to
successfully keep seasonal salaries under budget for the past three years saying $30,000 plus
annually.

•  Introduced seasonal weekly budget meetings with Department Heads to share updated financial
information and collaborate on seasonal budget management

•  Created and implemented Internal coniroi and purchasing procedures.

•  Manage preparation and fieidwork for annual external audit process.

Star Island Corporation, Portsfrtouth, NH, 2004 - 2008

BUSINESS & FINANCE MANAGER

Promoted to leadership role supporting all accounting and financial aspects of mairsland and on island
offices.

Key Accomplishments:

•  Created and implemented Finance Handbook as a guide for staff and Finance Committee.

«  Analyzed seasonal payroll and daily rate compensation structure, in^plemented lime clocks to
pay nonexempt seasonal staff per hour saving 5% annually on seasonal payroll.
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•  leadership and duv io-day managemeiK of seasonal on island stores [book shop and lobby

shop) purcliased all inventory, managed stalf and all inventory controls.

•  Compile delailed inlormation to prepare and submit reguiaiory filings for tow/n, state, federal

•  Ensured compliance with audit standards and proper revenue recognition.

•  Staff liaisoft to Finance Committee.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2000 - 2003

ACCOUNTANT

Hired to process Accounts Payable anif Payroll reporting to the Executive Director

Key Accomplishments:
•  Assessed all accounting procedures and eliminated the need for external accounting firm

•  implemented cash managemeni protocols to eliminate overdrafts and fees.

•  Researched, purchased and implemented new accounting software and revised General Ledger
account structure for efficiency.

«  Advised creation of Purchasing Agent position to consolidate staff workload and maximize
productivity.

Wolf Coach Company (acquired by 13 Communications), Auburn, NtA,
ACCOUNTANT, 1997- 1999'
OFFICE ASSISTANT, 1995 - 1997

COMPUTER SKILLS

Highly skilled in Excel, Proficient In MS Office including PowerPoint, Microsoft Dynamics Great
Plains and Management Reporter, Blackbavid Financial Edge, Fund CZ Accounting. Paychex

Paylink and Paychex Online Payroll. Apprentice level in Evolv and LWSI

Previous experience in QuickBooks Pro, and Peachtree Accounting (now Sage)

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT & VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Leadership Seacoast, Member Board of Directors June. 2015 - PRESENT;
Treasurer September, 2016 • PRESENT

Leadership Seacoasi, Admissions Committee, 201fl - PRESENT

Leadership Seacoast. Program Graduate, 2013

4H. Judge for various compeiitions, 2013 - 2015
Barringloo NH PTA 2011-2015

EDUCATION

Master of Business Administration, Southern New Hampshire University

Graduate Certificate in Accounting, Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Arts, Political Science, University of New Hampshire
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lANICr A. WII.I.IAMSON

7.I0.7S50 Ollicc

I iiiaii; .l:iiiWilliaiii<>Oiv?'i)fl(ucon)

II k;I II .Kil ITS' Ol- OUALII-*lCA l"ION'S:
.  10 ycnrs ol cxpciicncc non-pitifii oipnni/'.Hiriiis. ilic losi 35 in managcnicin and prof^i am

ndnii'iMShaU'oit.

•  ll.A. in Sociolojj^' backed by iirolcssionfil developineni ciHii>es in luiin.iii sci\ iccv and ntanngciucni.
•  Ci ncliuuc of U.S. Anny Contnunul and CcncrnI StallC"ollc|^c.

Sironji (rack rccoicl in dcvclopfng and implcn>«iiling iroining and snppori pivgi ami.
•  E.\pciicnccd in btidgfi devclnpmeni/ndministraiion nnd grant \viiilng.
.  Acciislonu'd to rcpresenlingftgciicy/|>.iriici|>aiit interests ibiotigli public S|Kitking and personal

tepresfnifliion.
•  I'xton.sive experience in developing liidiviiliial Service IMniis vocational cutilculnms.

F.xtctisiv'c experience in dcvelviping Individual Rducfitionnl Pl»(« nnd alternate school cnrrivtiimns.
•  {•.xicnsivc e.\|)Cric(icc with adiniidstrilive functions, including snpci'visinn of staff, hiiing.

Icrmln.ttuins. ̂ lalldcvcliipnienl and evaluation.
•  Skilll'u) in developing and inantiging contracts.
•  Adept at interpreting and ensiiiing program cnmpliance with siaic ai\d icclorni rcgtdniions.
•  Adept a! interpreting Speci<tl Hducalion icgii tat ions nnd managing nltciniaie S|K-cial ediiciilion schools
•  Strong lcar!cr!.liip qiinlilics and pniveii wilHnpiicss to nccep: responsibilities ticmonsmtied ihroiighoni

civilian and ii»iliiar>'caiverb-.
•  1 ligh level ot'scif iniiiative and icsmirceddncss in achieving inanageiini ohjcciivcs.

AdC|)t at inipleineiiiing end mnlntaimng the Menial Illness Management Services (MIMS).

nXPKRlGNCEANl) ACCOMI'I.ISHMKNTS:

\^m to Present NFI NUHTH, INC.
RegiolmfDirtier ——— —— - - - • - -
Kesponslblc fur overseeing the operoiions of all piogriims in my region. Provide leadership, supervision,
guidance and clinica) support. Responsible foi coimnunicnting all policies and pioccdurcs. contract
negoiihlions and development, liscal plunning iind on-call availability.

1094 10 1998 NFI NOKTM. INC.

I'rogiam Director. North Cutmiry Sliclter. JeflVrscm. NH
l<cs|x>ii.5llik for total opciaiions of co-ed program for 15 Nli tonil ordered youth and over lucnty liw
rnil-iime .siatT. This inciuded piuccntcnt, cuiinscling, ircatmcin, special education, nnd all HR fxinciions.

1991 to 1994 NOItTMERN NH DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES Sc MENTAL HEALTH. Wolfcboro.

Nli

Kcsidcnital C.'oordiniiior of luwcr Carroll County located ni the Carrol! Coimiy MciUal I lealth Ccmct.
Coouliniuc ami iinpicntcnl all residential progiams for individuals with a mental illness, Res|>unsible lor
all iSO/Enlmncc I'ainily care residcntinl programs. Responsible for nil coinpliancc with stale and federal
regulaiiuns'

198.110 1992 COM.VlUNirY SERVICES COUNCIL 01* MERRIMACK COUNn', Concord, NH
I'rogram Adintnisnnlni of the Trnumntic Brain Injury Residential Program ami the Vixaiional Training
Program, both Kx;3icd at rranklin Falls Farm • 1989 to May 1992

Direct III! iis|K'cts orrcltabiliiaiive seiviccs for braih-injined adults nnd progressive vocational
pi'ogiainming for the developmentally disabletl. Oversee too prxigrant man.igcis :ind a sialTol 1R
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tcsiJvninI nnd vacjii{iii;il ir;uiici;s iwoviiliuy sviviccs for o Ciisfloiid ol OO. Atlniliiisicr n SM)fl.<i()il

DvvcIo|h:cI ii piofilfihlc business prOttruiM ns u vucsiltonal irainiog lool for ll>o dcvVlopincnislK
(lisablvil.

I'slablMu-d hiybly successful. iion-liinJIiioicd nlicrn.iirvc vt>c;ilion."il pro^i fimS for ihnsv in need of
moil comprehensive ihcinpculk piisgiamiulni!,.
I'Inom-il/supcrviscd preyniinming and smn involvcd in developing jkuI clcliecrioij ilnvc ieparaic
votuilonal iiniiiing protiinins for.lhv dwclopmcnially disabled niul incmally ill ilnoniylioiii ceniinl
Ncn I lampsltirc.

hiiccily mvoU'od in jijtencyS rcccipl ofS^OO.OOO "Mobilily Grnnl" foi (Icvclopini; ihc TIJI progiiim.
r.siiibli.shcci >in)n'g iclalions wilU oiher TBI programs nallonwicic.
Inirodiiccd il»c area s I'li Si vocaiional unining proj'i-am lor ilie dcvelopmenlally disabfcil by
esiablishinii a day piogrnm ai n local clunvh hall.
I otniula(o<l iiiul iinplL-mciucd *11 piograni models nnd mnnagomcni sysioms i>n wliicb ihc Fi:mkl»n
Tails Taiin program was developed.
Implcmcnled and cooidinnicd services wllli oiilside llierapi.sls (s|>c<ch. occupfuionni, pI'S snal and
lichnvioinl)
Supervised all job coaches and uainers,

iVRCMo 1983 LACONIA STATIi SCI lOOl. AND TRAINING LT-NTER. Uconia. NH
Rcci'cniioonI TItcrnpisi

TL'ALTIING bXI'tRlbNCIi

1978 lo SAU fd. New TInmpsbne
19?V Sobsiiuiie Teacher for Mlddle-Sccoiidsiry School
197? 10 HOLOROOK .SCTIOOI., Ilolbruok, MA
)978 Siibstiiulc Tciiclicr ibr Middle-Secondary Scltool.

Mll.rfARy IIXI'ERIT.NCT.:

1978 m LfNITKD STA I'tS ARMY NATIONAL GUARD. Cmicurd. NH
1908 Dcinonslralcd strong leadership and miinaftcnicm Bbitllics rcSidiing in career progress from
ilie ruiilx of Private lo cyrrrntiimk olT.l. Colonel, Served as lUe Dcpuiy Dirccior ol Personnel
overseeing a siall of 20 at the Stare level. One of New Hampshire's fust two fcm.ale soldiers lo
pradiiJlefromOfficei CHiidldate School. 1988 recipient of the NH Army Conimcndaiion Medal for
Ootsiaitding Service. 1986 recipient of Ihc Ann> Commendation Medal lot Meritorious
Achievement. NITs 1985 Junior Officer of the Year. 1993 recipient of the MeriUnious Service Modal
for liAceplional Mcriloiioits .Service.

F.DUCaTION: North Adanii Stale College, Norih Adams. MA. 13..A. in Sociology.

l'Kt.)IT:.SSIONAI. Or.VF.I.OPMU'NT ;

H'S-i u, I'lcseni L'miiplction of inan\' siiirrdc\ elojrmoni wnrkshops and scmimirs relaieil to dircci viuc
;iii.l immagcrnvnl n ilhin hitman serviecs.

I99.S r.iellitaior/'Tiaincr of Modciaic Level Challenge Course,
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198910 1993 U.S. ARMY OENEfUVL COMMAND AND STArF COLLUGE. LomUmdcro-. NH
OfTtccrs training in managpincnt. ailminivuaiion. counsctingand c.kocuu'vc rcsitoflvbiliiie^

1987 U.S. ARNiY iNSm UTE I OK PROFF.S.<;iONAl. DtVFJ.OPMCKl. Ncirpivl VA
AdtancvU ManugciiKni. leadership and Ailininistmtinn-

1981 U.S. AKMY. AlxTifccn. Ml) • Ofl'iccr Raslc Course
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Shin'oi) U Hiloricnu

An odminislTWoi-wiih on cslablished'record of responsible decision moking in nil phases
ofproject and program managemeni. Highly skilled in all aspecis of non-profil
management. Worked cITcciivcly with employees ai all levels, strong work cihic, hard
working and dependable. V/orked with diverse population ofpcoplc including ages 6
months to elders and a vftrieiy of challenges, ensuring an optimal quality of care.

Areas of expertise
Budget Administrntion Customer Seivice Training and Development
Proyam and Project Managcmenr Staff Recruitment Licensing and Regulatory

A-sscssmcni ond Service Planning
Quaiitlciilions

•  Exceptional skill in personnel supervision and training prugram coordinniion-
•  Cflcctivc in budgeting and lung-mnge plonning
• Outslantliny ability to work with community, governmental and professional

groups

•  Proficient in prioritizing, organization, delegating nnd inotiviiiing
•  Extensive txpericncc in developing programs from concept to ongoing operation
•  Excellent computer skills
•  E.xccllcnt oihI and wTltten communication

Rclcvimt E.xpcricitcc uiid bkilb
Management und Admini.rtniiion

•  Supervised the daily operation of several programs with tt louil of 75+
people, sinlTing, and training to ensure gonis nre being met

•  Assisted in preparation and ndrninistration from $500,000 to $2 million
nnnual opemung budgets maintaining all budget targets '

•  Designed nnd implemented Doiabusc to assist in tracking clienu;. service
delivery, to ensure client sutisfaciion and on-tiinc daily product delivery

• Analyzed stailstieal dotn nnd compiled weekly, monthly und anmml
projection reports, used dato to improve orgnnizaiionnl performnncc and
lower costs •

•  Ensiuing monthly $upcrvi.<!ion and meetings provided io.hII employees to
ensure proper comimmiention at all levels

Organizing nnd CoorJinnling
•  Initiated itemized bidding spectftcation process; cvalwiied bids nnd

presented reeommendtttions end lower overall costs
•  Managed various complex site relocations assuring close out of old sites

and itK re-csinblishmcni of all new systems in the new sites
•  Courdinnied nnd developed in-$er\*icc troining programs to improve

customer service nnd keeping stafl' updated on oil policies
•  Crcnicd time litics to complete special projects

iMiirUclIng nnd rublic Relntions
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• Developed ideas for creating new projects, prioriilxed work and
implemented roilow-np procedures resulting in more cnicieni nnd
profitable work flow

•  Conducted cold colling conipnign. acquiring new work areas for young
entrepreneurs incrcnsing new accounts by 5 % in the first 30 days

Kn»i>iovmcot History

, Progrnm Director
NFI North. Transitional Housing Services

2012-Prcsc

Business Development Cuurdinalor
Resident Care Pharmacy, Meihuen, MA

Owner/OperatorSiinroit's Clcunlng
Methuen, MA

Mental Hcultli Case Monngcr
ESMV, Lawrence, MA

Child Cnrc Provider

Koryn'fi Kiddies. Ouiidhnil, VT

Director

Safe Haven. .Lnncnsicr, NM

Child S(ip()uri Services and Special Project Mttnagcr
CLCaC Inc., Hend Start, Lawrence. MA

Progi'nnt Monngcr
Greater Lnwrcncc Mental Health Center. Ln\vrencc. MA

Project Mnnnger

NFI. Donvcnt. MA

Assessment Soelni Worltvr

Massachusetts Dcpnnment ofSocial Services. Havcrhili. MA

Program Director nnd Consultnni
NFI Midway nnd North Country. Slicllers

Bdticniiun

SPIUNOFIl-LD COLLEGE, Springilcld. MA
iMiistcr of Sclcncc-Hunian Service Adminisfruiion
UNIVERSITY OF LOWELL, Lowell. MA

B.S. Public Servicc-Admiiitstrnrion of Criminal Jusrice

ni

2010-2012

2010-2012

2009-2010

2008-2009

200S-2009

2003-2008

2000-2002

1997-2000

1996-1997

1991-1996

1996

1986
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JEAN TEWKSBURY
eantewksburv@nafLcom

EXPERIENCE

3-24-22-TO PRESENT

PROGRAM DIRECTOR, NFI NORTH-THS BRADFORD
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE OVER FUNCTION, TRAINING, LEADERSHIP AND OPERATION OF THE

PROGRAM INCLUDING ADMINISTRATIVE TASKS, STAFF SUPERVISION, FISCAL BUDGET

MANAGEMENT, GROUP/INDIVIDUAL COUNSELING AND CRISIS INTERVENTION.

9-1-21-TO- 3-23-22

ACTING PROGRAM DIRECTOR, NFI NORTH-THS BRADFORD

Responsible for the over function, training, leadership and operation of the program including
administrative tasks, staff supervision, Fiscal Budget Management, group/individual counseling

and crisis intervention.

11-1-19 TO-9-1-21

ASSISTANT PROGRAM DIRECTOR, NFI NORTH-THS BRADFORD

Responsible for the over function and operation of the program including administrative tasks,
staff supervision, group/individual counseling and crisis intervention.

2-22-2017 To 11-1-19

Assistant Program Director, NFI North-THS Concord
Responsible for the over function and operation of the program including administrative tasks,

staff supervision, group/individual counseling and crisis intervention. Focus on the Residential
Component of the Transition Housing program by supervision staff on the job. Modeling
intervention and giving feedback

12/2015 To 2-15-2017

Self-Sufficiency Manger-Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Provided supervisor leadership (12 staff) and over sight of the Outreach Program which

consists of Fuel assistance. Electric Assistance and Weatherization Programs. Focus area

include budget development, case management and the development and delivery of
community outreach services to ensure Fuel and Electric Assistance is reaching Strafford

County. Successfully worked closely with the Weatherization Team in the redevelopment
of and cultivation of a strong Weatherization Program.

12/2012 To June 2015

Director of Programs-Young Women's Christian Association
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Provided supervisory leadership {16 staff) and oversight of Domestic Violence Crisis
Center, Visitation Center and You and Community Programing. Focus areas included
budget development, grant writing and implementation, case management,

development and delivery of community-based domestic violence and sexual assault

prevention /intervention education programs. Successfully worked closely with the
Youth and Community Program Coordinator and the re- development cultivation of a
strong prevention program around Teen Dating violence and programming to both girls
and oy making healthy decision and working to prevent hi risk behaviors as well
developing leadership skills. As a result the YWCA was successful in receiving an MOYU
from the three Manchester High Schools for our Peer Action Changing Tomorrow.

2002-2008

Program Director Friends Emergency Housing Program-The Friends
Program
Redeveloped all aspect of the Emergency Housing Program for homeless families.
Successfully Implanted a new strength-based case management model through staff,
professional development, revised policies and procedures and improve budget
management. Instrumental in the 2010 rollout of Transitional Housing program through
relationships with allied community partners.

2019-to Present

On Call Advocate-Crisis Center of Central IMH

Responsible for answering the crisis line on assigned shifts. Work with individuals who

call in for Domestic Violence support. I supply the individuals with information, individual
counseling, support at hospitals for sexual assault cases, work with local police
departments with LAP calls and find individual's safe housing as needed.

EDUCATION

MAY 1994

BACHOLORS OF SCIENCE-HUMAN SERVICES AND COUNSELING, LYNDON STATE

COLLEGE.

JUNE 1989

HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA, HOPKINTON HIGH SCHOOL

COMMUNITY INVOLMENT/LEADERSHIP

•  Sexual Assault Response Team of
Hillsborough County. Committee Member

2013-2015

•  Concord Coalition to End Homelessness,

Board of Directors 2009-2012

•  President of Redhawks Varsity Football Program

Manchester Health Department Weed
and Seed. 2013-2015

Domestic Violence Council 2015

(Played instrumental role in '

development of the council after it

disbanded in 2012)
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krriplOifwdO nsil.com

OBJKTtVE To uUlUt my eckfcation. ikiKs and opedence to work in the Roid of human servicM. more
tpeciftcally the manul health field

WORK HISTORY PROGRAM DIRECTOR. NF1 NORTH, eETHLEHEM NH

October 2017-oresem

•  Perform dally taiki tor the tuceejjfuJ running of a resldeofltl program

•  raclliuie weekty supctvhkMn and staff mceilngs

•  Manage consumer trealmant and document in the electronic medieil
record

•  Prepare annual budget and submit monthly blQ'f>g

•  ColiaboratewlthouTsldeagenclcsanddepartmenu

•  Certified as a cralrter In IMR and SEP

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SUPPORTS/AREA DIRECTOR, NHS LnrtETON NH

August 2013*OCtObei' 2017

•  Coordlnaiedwlthoutsideagenctes

•  Supervised afl suff. including case managers

•  Oversaw evidenced based practices: ACT, SEP, CM and fSS

•  Collaborated with local ponce department and 6EAS

•  Coordinated adult and children's treatment

CASE MANACER/fUNCTlONAL SUPPORTS SPECIAllST, NHS, ITTTlETON NH

August 2009-August 2013

•  Provided outreach to clienu with mertial Illness while adhering to

their trtaiineni plans

•  upheld cunfldentialliy of all chenu

•  . linked clients with communltY resources

•  Created and Implemented treatment plans and quarterly reviews

EDUCATION MATTERS OF SCIENCE IN LEADERSHIP, SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY, MARCH 2020
RACHCIORS IN BSHAVlDRAL SCIENCE, GRANITE STATE COLLEGE, MARCH 2011

ASSOOATES IN HUMAN SERVICES, NHCTC MAY 2006
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QUALtFICATIONS Trainer tor M»f>ajement and Recovery and Supposed CmptoytTUfnt,

ANSA certified. Oirtmoulh Supported Employment supervisor tr«inin|. CPR

artd first aid tralrsed.

Pjgg I j Keri fiiley-PicVford
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MATHEW R. HAWES

PROFILE:

Dynamic, results-oriented professional with 20 years of experience in fast-Paced training, leadership, academic,
administrative, team oriented and professional environments. Proven track record for leading complex projects an
initiatives, motivating technical work teams, and rolling out/development of organizational training sessions. Detail
knowledge of teaching techniques and academic programs. Consistently achieved or exceeded goals, deadlines, and
quality standards. Ability to complete assignments and projects working with limited instruction or supervision.
Excellent communication, organizational, technical, analytical, problem solving, decision-making, and leadership
skills. Computer skills include Word, PowerPoint, Excel, Outlook, Access and Photoshop.

EDUCATION:

M.S. Degree, Psychology, Concentrations: Applied Behavior Analysis; General Psychology 3.88 CPA (Current)
WALDEN UNIVERSITY, Minneapolis, Minnesota (Expected Completion Date: Aug-2022)

B.S. Degree, Psychology (Minor: Philosophy). 3.84 CPA (Final) Honors: summa cum latide
PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY, Plymouth, NH (Completion Date: 31 -Dec-2012)

Military education and training included Leadership, Physical Education, Safety Awareness, Electronics, Switchboard
Repair, Digital Logic, Interior Wiring, Solid States Devices, Blueprint Reading, Test Equipment, Circuits, Soldering,
and AC/DC.

CERTIFICATIONS & TRAINING:

First Aid/CPR Certification, Therapeutic Crisis Intervention Training, Safe Alternatives for Everyone (SAFE),
Trauma Informed for Non-clinical, Cultural Competency, HIPAA Training, and Privacy and Information Security

AREAS OF EXPERTISE:

Team Management
Individual/Group Supervision
Training & Development
Counseling
Problem Solving

Safety Management
Leadership
Military
Budgeting & Purchasing
Personal Care & Service

Sports & Recreation
Cost Containment

Vendor Relations

Administration

Computers & Software

EXPERIENCE:

Program Director
NFl North, Inc. (2021-Current)

•  Responsible for all program operations including but not limited to quality service delivery, clinical,
fiscal, facility and personnel management. Maintain compliance of Federal, State and Local, accrediting
body and agency regulations and standards.

Assistant Program Dircctor/Cllnlcal Case Manager
NFI North, Inc. (2017-2021)

•  Responsible for assisting the Program Director in the overall functioning and operation of the
program, including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual counseling and crisis
intervention.

•  Provide case management and clinical services to assigned participants. Is responsible for
administrative duties and clinical support for participants, including supported employment as well
as providing clinical training and support for staff.
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Case Manager
Easter Seals, Lancaster NH (2015-2017)
•  Assist the treatment team in the assessment of each youth to develop an individual treatment plan.
•  Coordinate and implement all aspects of the treatment plan to ensure compliance as defined by the Division

of Children and Youth Services.

•  Provide and/or coordinate family case management to include meetings, transportation, respite, emergency
services, and behavior management.

•  Ensure participation in integrated community activities on a regular basis.
•  Document and ensure compliance as it pertain to state certification/licensing standards, agency policies,

other agencies guidelines and contractual obligations, (i.e., data, daily and monthly progress reports,
medication logs, hiring, supervisions, attendance, monthly financial reports and fire drills.)

Residential Instructor

EASTER SEALS, LANCASTER, NH (2012 - Present)

•  Provide direct consumer supervision following policies and procedures to guarantee client safety.
•  Develop, coordinate and participate in resident and community activities ensuring active consumer

participation.

•  Provide social and living skill-development training required to increase individual independence.
•  Participate on the treatment team responsible for implementation of Individual Service Plan (ISP), Behavior,

Protective Oversight, and Residential Rehabilitation plan, as requested.
•  Maintain documentation for administrating medication, daily logs, and Data Assessment Plans (DAP).

Trainer / Manager
VOLT TELECOM GROUP, San Diego, CA (2007 - 2008)

Managed training activities at 7 locations involving installation and maintenance of fiber optic cable, high
speed internet, phone, and television infrastructure for a subcontractor of AT&T.

Delivered 6-week internal and 3-month field training programs for buried and aerial infrastructures and
equipment in preparation for AT&T's Lightspeed project.
Oversaw training for a total of up to 100 people at a time consisting of new hires with a high percentage of
personnel with limited installation e.xperience.

Selected program candidates and instructors. Designed program curriculum, education materials, schedules,
and performance requirements.
Administered multi-million dollar labor, supply, equipment, training, and operations budget.
Successfully trained 600+ people. Achieved 80% program completion rate for field and written e.xams,
resulting in an excellent hire rate for phone company positions.

Ground Communications-Installer / Telephone Technician / Corporal
UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS, Camp Pendleton, OA & Okinawa, Japan (2000 - 2007)

Supervised, trained, and motivated a team of 15 technicians and installers and directed daily operations in a
Maintenance & Repair depot on a base with 100,000 personnel.
Managed installation of a Bureau of Medicine & Surgery Network at Camp Pendleton Naval Hospital
including installation of routing cables, fiber splicing, and testing.
Oversaw installation of an Anti-Terrorism/Force Protection Network across 3,800 buildings including
infrastructure upgrades, fiber optic cable installation, and security measures.
Built a Marine Corps Community Services Network linking all base convenience stores, dining areas,
recreation areas, and lodging via fiber optic cables to the Main Exchange.
Held Secret Security Clearance and participated in numerous tactical exercises.
Represented Unit (of 1,200 Marines) at functions and events. Received Presidential Letter of Appreciation
and numerous other medals, ribbons, awards, and citations.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D5DB10C-C391-4485-9F99-3586930BAFDA

CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Paul Dann Executive Director S217,804 0 0

Luke Reynard Chief Operating Officer SI 46,000 0 0

Kristi Vazifdar Chief Financial Officer $126,000 0 0

Jan Williamson Regional Director 5135,000 40% $ 54,000

Sharon Bilodeau Program Director - Concord $97,500 100% $ 97,500

Jean Tcwksbury Program Director - Bradford $ 70,000 100% $ 70,000

Keri Riley-Pickford Program Director - Maple Lodge $ 79,800 100% $ 79,800

Mathew Hawes Program Director - Ashland $ 73,500 100% $ 73,500

TBD Program Director - Manchester $ 72,000 100% S 72,000
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SEP09»20 am10:03 DftS

tori A. SkttriMtie

Ceaffiiniofirr

K«t]a S. Foi
DImtor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9544 1.S00452-334S Eat 9344

Pat: 603.27)-4332 TDD Acccis: 1.000.735-2964 ww».dhtu.oh.|Ov

August 31, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing Sole Source contract with NFI North, Inc. (VC#177575-B001). Contoocook,
NH to expand their community Transitional Housing Program for adults who have severe mental
illness or severe and persistent mental illness, by increasing the number of beds from sixty (60)
to seventy-six (76) and increasing the price limitation by $2,079,800 from $2,400,000 to
$4,479,800 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2022 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 15, 2020, item #6.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State. Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, uF>on the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances tjetween state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-96-92-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$1,200,000 $1,382,800 $2,582,800

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$1,200,000 $697,000 $1,897,000

Subtotal $2,400,000 $2,079,000 $4,479,890

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department did not receive any responses to
the Request for Application, posted April 24, 2020" and closed May 15, 2020, to operate these
sixteen (16) transitional housing program beds. In the interest of maintaining Transitional Housing
capacity statewide, and the public's health and safety, the Department has identified this vendor
as having the capacity and expertise to quickly respond to the Transitional Housing Program
needs for these sixteen (16) beds.
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His Excellency. Oovemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

The purpose of this request Is expand the existing contract to include eight (8) additional
transitional housing program beds in the Greater Manchester Region arxt eight (8) additional beds
in another area in the state, as approved by the Department, for adults who have severe mental
illness or severe and persistent mental illness and are eligible for community mental health
services. arwJ no longer meet the level of care provided by New Hampshire Hospital or designated
receiving facilities. With successful transitions for these patients, it is anticipated that this vritt
enable beds to open at New Hampshire Hospital and the designated receiving facilities thus
having a positive impact on Individuals waiting in emergency departments for a bed. Individuals
participating in the transitional housing program will receive the necessary services to support
and promote rehabilitation that will facilitate a transition to independent living in the community

The population served are Individuals who are at least eighteen (18) years of age and
older, have been diagnosed with a severe mental illness or severe and persistent mental illness,
and meet eligibility criteria for community mental health services at a community mental health
center as defined in New Hampshire Administrativo Rule He-M 401. Approximately sixteen (16)
individuals will be served from October 1, 2020 to June 30, 2022.

The program serves the dinical, medical, vocational, and residential needs of adult men
and women with mental lllrwss. The program services indude: psychiatric services, medication
managemerit, clinical services, medical services, targeted case management, specialized and co-
occurring treatment services, vocational and day treatment services, and support for community
connectedness and family involvement.

The Department will monitor contraded services using the following performance
measures:

• Quarterly meetings to review submitted quarterly reports that outline the number of
beds occupied, programmatic services provided to each individual, each
individual's progress towards independent living, and incoming cases.

• Annual review of the effectiveness of services will be measured using the Adult
Needs and Strengths Assessment, or other approved evidence based
assessment.

•  Evaluation of individual service encounter data that is submitted through the
Department's Phoenix reporting system will inform care monitoring and ongoing
agency wide quality service monitoring.

•  Submission of monthly Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements to the
Department for ongoing evaluation of the programs fiscal Integrity.

•  Engagement in financial and programmatic audits to ensure fiscal integrity Is
maintained and programming is meeting the needs of individuals serv^.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Paragraph 1.2 of
the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is not exercising its option to
renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request sixteen (16) Transitional
Housing Program beds will no longer be available to individuals in need of transitional residential
treatment services who are transitioning from New Hampshire Hospital or a designated receiving
facility to the community which, in turn, limits the availability of beds for Individuals awaiting
inpatient hospital services across the State.
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HI# exceCency. Governor C»vtstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable CouncO
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Area served: Greater Manchester and an additional Mental Health Region

Source of Funds: General Funds

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

Tht Department of Health and Human Servicet'Mhsion U to Join communilie* and familitt
in providing opportunities for cilitent to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

state of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Transitional Housing Programs Contract

This 1" Amendmen! to the Transitional Housing Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#1') is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and NFI North. Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 40 Park Lane, Contoocodk, NH 03229.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by Ihe Governor and Executive Council
on July 15, 2020, #16, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions.contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to anhend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

$4,479,800.

2. Add Exhibit B, Scopeof Sen/ices, Section 1. StatementofWork, Subsection 1.1., Paragraph 1.1.4.
to read:

1.1.4. An eight (8) bed Transitional Housing Program in mental health region seven (7) at the
Contractor's Greater Manchester location.

1.1.5. An eight (8) bed Transitional Housing Program in another mental health region as approved
by the Department in writing within thirty (30) days of contract approval.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 7. Use of Premises for the State Owned Buildings -
Governor Hugh Gallen State Office Park Campus, by deleting It in its entirety and replacing it to
read:

7. Use of Premises for the State Owned Buildings - Governor Hugh Gallen State Office
Park Campus

7.1. The Contractor shall use the buildings owned by the State of New Hampshire, identified
by the Department as Bayberry House, Brick House, Grey House, Pond Place East,
Pond Place West, Yellow House, and Howard Recreational Center, to provide the
Transitional Housing Program on the Hugh Gallen State Office Park South Campus in
Concord. New Hampshire (hereinafter "premises") to provide transitional housing
services as specified in this Exhibit B.

7.2. The Contractor agrees that routine building maintenance is defined as normal wear and
tear of the building structure, envelope, systems, hardware, and fixed assets (not
including kitchen appliances). Routine building maintenance does not include damage
resulting in abuse or neglect by the Contractor or its agents, consumers, and visitors.

7.3. The Contractor shall:

7.3.1. Establish accounts for all utilities (Natural Gas, Water, Sewer, Waste Disposal
and Electric)' in Ihe name of the Contractor, with NHH named as "second" on
each utility account. Invoices for each utility shall be sent directly to, and paid by.
the Contractor;

7.3.2. Reimburse the State for utilities based on allocated one-third (1/3) the square
footage of the Howard Recreational Center; ,—os

7.3.3. Assign a liaison and backup to develop a Maintenance and Houiel^teping
NFI North, inc. Amendment Contractor Initials

SS-2021-08H^3.TRANS-01-A01 Page 1 of 8 Date



OocuSign Envelope ID: 9D5D810C-C391-4485-9F99-3586930BAFDA

OocuSign Env«{opa tD: 05040A29^0$^3F»^&.2398AS33581C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

"" Checklist for routine repairs and maintenance needs. The Maintenance and
Housekeeping Checklist will be available for the Hospital to review.and prioritize
during the monthly inspection conducted by the Hospital. Liaisons will-be the
only persons who shall contact Hospital Facilities or Environmental Services
Offices;

7.3.4. Designate a liaison to t>e responsible for all keys, to include distribution, tracking,
and communication with the Hospital Facilities Office for lock repair or key
replacement;

7.3.5. Be responsible for routine household tasks, such as, moving of fumiture,
changing light bulbs, and minor plumbing repairs, such as, toilet unclogging;

7.3.6. Be responsible for housekeeping in accordance with checklist references in
Paragraph 7.3.3. above;

7.3.7. Be responsible for window air conditioners maintenance, repairs, and
replacement;

7.3.8. Be responsible to call State Office Complex Police if there is an emergency
requiring maintenance after normal business hours;

7.3.9. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of household
appliances, such as refrigerators, dishwashers, washer and dryer;, and stoves;

7.3.10. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaping features
and decorations, such as gazebos, gazing balls, etc.;

7.3.11. Conduct rhonthly fire extinguisher inspections, in coordination with Hospital
Facilities Office. Maintain, or replace the extinguishers annually as necessary;

7.3.12. Be responsible for any damage due to occupancy, or leasehold improvements,
including interior painting and floor covering repair or replacement. In no case
shall the Contractor make improvements without the written permission of the
New Hampshire Hospital Facilities Office;

7.3.13. Use the Department's Information Technology (IT) cables only as approved by
the IT.Department;

7.3.14. Pay for the personal alarm {'Life Alert") system;

7.3.15. Be responsible for snow removal and de-icing of steps and walkways adjacent
to the buildings;

7.3.16. Be responsible for the purchase, supply, laundering, and management of all
linens (sheets, pillowcases, bath towels, and face cloths);

7.3.17. Be responsible for laundering and management of all client personal Hems;

7.3.18. Ensure all buildings are reasonably maintained, kept sanitary, and clean
between scheduled cleaning inspections and services provided by the Hospital;

7.3.19. Ensure all buildings are free of pests and pay for pest extermination services if
needed;and

7.3.20. Dispose of recycling materials.

7.4. The Contractor shall have the right to utilize the onsite parking lots and acknowledges
that no reserved parking is provided as part of this Agreement.

7.5. The Contractor confirms the premises has been inspected and the condition of the
premises is acceptable.

NFl North, Inc. Amendment • Contractor Initials
9/2/2020
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7.6. The Contractor shall obtain written consent from the State of New Hampshire prior to
performing or constructing any additions, alterations or improvements to the premises.

7.7. The Contractor shall ensure all work, repairs, renovations, or replacements approved by
the State in Paragraph 7.3.3. are guaranteed by the vendors completing the work,
against defects resulting from the use of inferior materials, equipment or workmanship
for one (1) year from the date of completion of the work.

7.8. The Contractor shall ensure that If. within any guarantee period, repairs or changes are
required in connection with guaranteed work, which in the opinion of the State of New
Hampshire is rendered necessary as a result of the use of materials, equipment or
workmanship which are inferior, defective, or not in accordance with the terms of the
Contract, the Contractor shall promptly upon receipt of notice from the State of New
Hampshire, and at the Contractor's own expense:

7.8.1. Place in satisfactory condition in every particular, all guaranteed work and correct
all defects therein;

7.8.2. Make good all damage to the building or site, or equipment or contents thereof,
which in the opinion of the State of New Hampshire, is the result of the use of
materials, equipment or workmanship which are inferior, defective, or not In
accordance with the terms of the Contract; and

7.8.3. Make good any work or material, or the equipnnent and contents of said building
' or site disturb^ in fulfilling any such guarantee.

7.9. The Contractor is responsible for all repairs due to wear or negligence on the part of the
Contractor, its employees, assignees, or guests.

7.10. The Contractor shall be subject to general supervision by the State of New Hampshire.
The Contractor shall be subject to rules and regulations prescribed by the State of New
Hampshire including, but not limited to, meeting the requirements of the Department's
Health Facilities Administration, and the State of New Hampshire Public Works
Department.

7.11. The Contractor shall protect, repair and maintain the premises in good order and
condition and shall exercise due diligence in protecting the premises against damage or
destruction by fire, vandalism, theft or.other causes.

7.12. The Contractor shall, at all times during the existence of this Agreement, promptly
observe and cornply with the provisions of all applicable federal, state and local laws,
rules, regulations, and standards, and in particular those provisions concerning the

'  protection and enhancement of environmental quality, pollution control and abatement,
safe drinking water, life safety systems and solid and hazardous waste.

7.13. Should the Contractor discover any violations to applicable federal, state and local laws,
rules, regulations or standards, the Contractor shall report the violations immediately to
the Department and. at their own expense, be responsible for any costs incurred as a
result of the violation of the aforementioned federal, state and locaj laws, rules and
regulations and standards.

7.14.The Contractor agrees that any agency of the State of New Hampshire, its officers,
agents, employees, and contractors may enter the premises, at all times (with
reasonable notice) for any purpose, including insfjection, and the Contractor shall have
no claim on account of such entries against the State of New Hampshire or any officer,
agent, employee or contractor thereof.

7.15. The Stale shall not be responsible for damage to property or injuries to pers^twhich
may arise from or be attributed, or incident to the exercise of the privileges gram^fi^n^der

NFI North. Inc. Amendmenl #1 Conlractor Inilials
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this Agreement. Including the condftion or state of repair of the premises and.its use and
occupation by the Contractor, or from damage to their property, or damage to the
property, or injuries to the persons of the Contractor or any officers, employees,
servants, agents, contractors, or others who may be at the^premises at their invitation or
the invitation of any one of them arising from governmental activities at the premises.
The Contractor expressly waives all claims against the State of New Hampshire for any
loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring by reason of or incident
to the possession or use of the premises or as consequence of the conduct of activities
or the performance of respohsiliilities under this Agreement.

7.16. The Contractor agrees, to indemnify, save, hold harmless and defend the State and the
State of New Hampshire, their officers, employees and agents from and against all suits,
claims, or actions of any sort resulting from, related to or arising out of any activities
conducted under this Facilities Use Agreement section and any costs, expenses,
liabilities, -fines or penalties resulting from discharges, emissions, spills, storage,
disposal or any other action by the Contractor giving rise to liability to the State or the
State of New Hampshire, civil or criminal, or responsibility under federal, state or local
environmental laws. This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement and is not intended to waive the State's sovereign immunity, which is hereby
reserved by the State.

7.17. The Facilities Use section of this Agreement is effective only insofar as the rights of the
Contractor in the premises involved are concerned, and the Contractor shall obtain such
permission as may be necessary on account of any other existing rights,

7.18. The terms of the Facilities Use section of this Agreement shall not be transferred or
assigned. The Contractor agrees that on the Completion Date of this Agreement, it shall
vacate the premises and shall, remove all personal property and restore the premises
to a condition satisfactory to the State, with damages beyond the control of the
Contractor and due to ordinary wear and tear excepted. If the Contractor neglects to
remove their personal property and to so restore the premises, then at the option of the
State, such property shall either become property of the State without compensation
therefore, or the State may cause property to be removed and the premises to be so
restored at the expense of the Contractor, and no claim for damage against the State or
its officers, employees or agents shall be created by or made on account of such removal
and restoration work.

7.19. The Contractor and the State agree that no notices, orders, directions, determinations,
requirement consents, or approvals under this Agreement shall be of any effect unless
it is in writing. All notices to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be addressed to
the State:

New Hampshire Hospital
Attn: Director of Facilities

36 Clinton Street

Concord. NH. 03301

7.20.The.Department's New Hampshire Hospital shall:

7.20.1. Conduct scheduled prev'entative maintenance inspections and repairs for all
equipment to include, heating and cooling systerns. sump pumps, plumbing
fixtures, drains, and backflow preventers;

7.20.2. Replace, as needed, equipment to include, heating and cooling systems,
sump pumps, plumbing fixtures, drains, backflow preventers, and generators;

*  ■ 05

7.20.3. Maintain all electrical wiring and related hard-wired lighting, recepfede&and
panel board fixtures; ( '

NFI North Inc Amendtneni Ccnlractor Initials
^ . 9/2/2020
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7.20.4. Maintain all fire protection related equipment, except fire extinguishers;

7.20.5. Respond to requests for routine maintenance during normal business hours.
Monday through Friday 7:00 AM - 3:00 PM;

7.20.6. Respond immediately to emergency maintenance requests that threaten the
health and safety of consumers, staff, and property as needed, twenty-four
(24) seven (7) days per week;

7.20.7. Tour each building as needed, or requested to inspect the building and to
review and prioritize the Maintenance Checklist developed by the Contractor
Liaison;

7.20.6. Provide monthly testing of each generator and egress lighting, and provide
the Contractor with written documentation of the testing and results;

7.20.9. Conduct fire drills in accordance with applicable compliance regulations, and
provide the Contractor with written documentation of the test and results;

7.20.10. Conduct sprinkler inspections in accordance with applicable local, State, and
federal regulations, and provide the Contractor with written documentation of
the test and results;

7.20.11. State Office Complex Police will provide Police Coverage and Protection
including Life-Alert;

7.20.12. Monitor Transitional Housing Services environment via the building
automation system;

7.20.13; Clean kitchen exhaust ductwork on an annual basis; and

7.20.14. Maintain locks and replace lost or damaged keys at a price to be determined
by the Hospital.

3.4. The Department shall provide ground maintenance, defined as the following:

•7.20.15. Mowing of lawns;

7.20.16. Trimming of bushes and shrubs;

7.20.17. Plowing of roads; and

7.20.18. Maintenance of trees.

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Section 3. Subsection 3.4., to read:

3.5. For individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the services they receive,
and for operational costs contained in Exhibits C-1, Budget, C-1, Amendment 1,
Budget. C-2. Budget arid C-2. Amendment 1. Budget for which the Contractor cannot
otherwise seek reimbursement from an insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor
will directly bill the Department to access contract funds provided through this
Agreement.

3.5.1. Invoices of this nature shall include general ledger detail indicating, the
Department is only being invoiced for net expenses, shall only be reimbursed
up to the current Medicaid rate for the services provided and contain the
following items for each client and line item of service:

3.5.1.1. .First and last name of client.

3.5.1.2. Date of birth.

3.5.1.3. Medicaid ID number.

3.5.1.4. Date of Service identifying date, units, and any possible Ijfinxfijarly
reimbursement received. I fU/

NFI North Inc Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
9/2/2020
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5. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget and replace in Its entirety with Exhibit C-1, Amendment 1 Budget, which
is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C-2. Budget and replace in its entirety with Exhibit C-2, Amendment 1 Budget, which
is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

PU).
NFI North Inc. Amendment tfl Contractor Initials

9/2/2020
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Arr»endment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services-

9/3/2020

Date

dU

Name' chnstme Santamello
Title; Di rector

NFI North. Inc.

9/2/2020

Date

^  DocM>low< by:

pAul pAtUA-
^Ji*67n03KtUIX.
Name: Paul bann

Title:
Executive Director

NFI North, Inc.

SS-2021-D8H-03-TRANS-01-A01

Amendment #1
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

ifcir

9/3/2020 I
MdMoauacAt^aaCAU

Date Name; Catherine Pinos

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NFI North, Inc. Amendment
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(Jeantaa. Panrats and laat; 5  2.451.00 5 245.10 5 2696.10 5 197250 5 197.85 s 2.17235 s 472.50 S 47.25 5 510.75

and Ediipnart Cmu ler Haw Facttie* i t . S 5 i 746.60000 i -  • 5 746.600.00

TOTAL t  A6S7.7M.47 6 8a5,776.a5 t 9.623.63212 V 1 iaiAaiU i 7.887.63212 T" 241289288 5 248200260

Inc.

SS>7«7I««H«>TI(AM»4

tiKMC-l.lMndnoM I anlgit

CamasmBMH.'-^/2020
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Hm0 Hamp«Mr* OapartoiMnt e< HMtth and »tenan Sardcas
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOO

B«atM lUaoMi lar: Tnoil

a«M: arr nti iiunn • v)tn»u

Tout Prosram Coal Canbactcr 6Aara / Match

Diraet tndlraa YotJ Diraet lr>dlr«ci iotd Diraci mdfrftct Tobri

t. Tout SMan^vvaoaa t  S.7»4.70Q.M 8 578.470.86 8 6.363.179.50 8 4.734.765.41 8 662.867.18 8 5.397.632.57 i 1.049.943.23 8 104.994.33 i 1.154.937.55

2. Empby** S  I.SSI.S71.33 i 156.187.13 8 1.718.(356.46 8 1.276.391.68 8 178.974.84 -8 1.457.366.52 i 283.479.65 8 26.347.96 i 31l,B27Al

2. CotwAaru t  810.472.00 8 81.067.20 8 665.469.20 i 663.780.58 8 92.929.28 8 756,709.86 i 147.i9i.42 8 14.719.14 i 161.910.56

4. EouBman: 8 8 - 8 8 • 8 8
- •

i
•

RartM %  18.146.64 8 1.814.66 8 I6377.X 8 14.853.02 8 2.079.42 i I6.93Z4S 8 3.2S3.6I 8 i 3,622.96

Repair ard MMrunenca 8  9.600.00 8 960.00 8 10.120.00 8 8.021.30 8 1.122.98 8 i.144.M 8 1.778.70 8 iW.iJ i 1.956A7

PumwWOWfaciaaen i  i^4.&03.28 8 72.4Sa33 8 190.275.01 8 183.755.93 8 25.725.83 i 209.481.77 i 4a747.35 8 4.074.73 i 44.822.06

8 . i . 8 - 8 • i • 8 • - i
-

Era ratinnal S  1.000.00 8 ioo.ra 8 1.100.00 8 818.50 8 114.59 i 933.09 8 181.50 i 16.15 8 199.65

lab 8 8 • 8 • 8 8 • 8 - 8 8

PharmacT $  48.000.00 8 4.800.00 8 48.400.00 8 39.288.00 8 5.500.32 8 44.788.32 8 8.712.00 8 871.20 8 9.563JO

Madcal 8 • 8 • 8 • 8 • 8 •
8 8

OKiea S  27.000.00 8 Z7oaoo 8 23.10O.CO 8 22.099.50 8 3.093.93 8 25.193.43 1 4.900.50 8 490.05 8 5.390.55

6. TravM S  69.485.00 8 6.948.50 8 43.i43i0 8 56.873.47 8 7.962.29 i 64.635.76 8 12.611.53 8 1.261.15 i 13.672.66

7. OcoMTcr t  3S2.)»4.}9 8 35.239.44 8 246.283.83 8 268.434.81 8 40.380.67 i 326.8lS.66 8 63.959.56 8 6.395.96 8 70.355.54

B. Cretan Ejcpanaaa 8 i - 8 8 -
8 i •

8
-

TaMprcra S  67.000.00 8 6.70000 8 56.100.00 8 54.839.50 8 7.677.53 8 62.Sl7.03 8 1Z 160.50 8 1.216.05 8 13.376.55

Poaiaoa S  2.000.00 8 2DO.OO i t.iOO.OO 8 1.637.00 8 229.16 8 1.866.18 8 363.00 i 36.30 8 399.30

SaOkiL'ii'iw 8  945.00 8 94.50 i 1.039.50 8 773.48 8 106.29 8 881.77 8 lh.S2 i 17.15 8 168.87

>Ld«wvlLaod S  tt.OOO.OO i 1.100.00 8 12.100.00 8 9.003.50 8 1.200.49 8 10.263.99 8 - 1.996.50 8 199.65 5 Zi96.lS

Vnurarca S  83.527.84 •8 6.35Z76 8 70.540.63 8 68.367.54 8 9.S7I.46 8 77.93699 8 15,160.30 8 1.516.03 8 16.676.33

Boara Experaaa 8 . 8 8 • 8 • i • 8 - 8 • 8
-

$  S.776.20 8 577.62 8 4.427.50 8 4.727.62 8 661.89 8 5.389.71 8 1.046.38 8 104.64 8 1.153.22

1

Q

%  I4.240.00 8 I.424.0O 8 10.164.00 8 U.655.44 8 1.631.76 8 13.287.20 8 2.584.56 8 258.46 8 2643.02

II. Siafl Education and Trairina 8  S2.B80.00 8 S.288.00 8 43.395.00 8 43.282.28 8 6,050.52 8 49.341.80 8 9.597.72 8 959.77 8 10.557.49

12. Subcdr«racu//^aaman* 8 - 8 • 8 • 8 - 8 8
- •

8
-

13. Oihar (tpaciic datads manOKory): 8 . 8 . 8 - 8 8 8 - • 8
•

CarvunaOlas: Food. Houoanoid maiariab. < 8  3&3.760.00 8 35.37800 8 329.560.00 8 289.552.58 8 40.537.36 8 330.069.92 8 64.207.44 8 6.420.74 8 70.626.16

Ucamaa. Panntt* and laos: 8  2.515.00 8 251.50 8 1.455.M 8 2.058.53 8 288.19 8 2.348.72 8 456.47 8 45.65 8 502.1?

■i - 8 8 8 - 8 •
8 8

TOTAL 8  I.UI.ftXO.)! 8 9S0.182A3 10.451.877AS •t 8 <.t«8.7»7.04 i 1.yi4.iii.4i t i7Z4S4.64 8 1.897.000.00
teaVvcl A» A « •! Ow^cl

»«He>v>.kie.
>»w oa>*o Nwe<»-*o«
bXM C-i. Amantfnam i
Pw« I

CaonavMM
-9/r/2020
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

niVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-291.9944 1.8004S2-334S EiL 9S44

Pti: 603-2714332 TDD Accco: 1400-739-2964 w««.dhhs.alLteT

Juno 23. 2020

His Excenancy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACHON

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behaviorai Health, to
enter Irrto a Retroactive, Sole Source contract with NFI North. Inc. (VCfii177575-B00l).
Cohtoocook. NH in the amount of $2,400,000 to provide a community Transitional Housing Program'
for adults who have severe mental Illness or severe and persistent mental illr>ess, with the option to
renew for up to four (4) additional years, effective retroactive to July 1. 2020 upon Governor and
Counol approval through June 30. 2022.100 % General Funds.

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021 and am anticipated
to be available In State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation
through the Budget Office, if needed and juslified.

0$-96-92.922010-4117 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. CMH
PROGRAM SUPPORT

State
Fiscal Year

Ctaas/

Account
Class TItfo Job Number Total Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204117 $1,200,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204117 $1,200,000

Subtotot 12,400,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because in the interest of the public's health and safety, the
Department has identlfted this vendor as having the capacity to quickly respond to the Transitional
Housing Program needs for sixty (60) beds. This request is Rotroactlvo because this abrupt change
In the Department's strategic approach led to additional negotiations, which delayed the execution
of the contract.

The purpose of this request is to operate ifansitional housing program(s) for adults who have
Bovere mental illness (SMI) or severe and persistent mental Illness (SMPI) and are eligible for
community mental health services and no longer meet the level of care provided by New Hampshire
Hospital (NHH) or Donated Receiving FacilHies (DRF). With successful transitions of these difTtcuU
to place patients. It is anticipated that beds will open at NHH and the ORF(s)), thus having a positive
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

Impact on individuais waiting in emergency departments for a bed. Patients partidpattf>g in the
transitional housing program will receive the necessary services to support and promote
rehabiiitation that wilt facilitate a transition to independent living in the community.

The populabon served are Individuals wtio are at least eighteen (18) years of age and older
and have been diagnosed with a SMI or SPMI and meet etigibiOty criteria (or community mental
health services at a community mental health center (CMHC) as defined in He-M 401. Approximately
60 Indrvtduals will be served from July 1. 2020 to June 30. 2022.

The program serves the clinical, medical, vocational, and residential needs of adult men and
women with mental Illness. The program services, include: psychiatric services, medication
management, dinical services, medical services, targeted case management, spedatized and co>
occurring treatment services, vocational and day treatment services, and support for community
connectedness and family involvement.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance measures:
• Quarterty meetings to review submitted quarterly reports that outline the number of

beds occupied, pfogrammatic servicas provided to each individual, each individual's
progress towards independent living, and incoming cases.

• Annual review of the effectiveness of services wlQ be measured using the Adult
Needs and Strengths Assessment, or other approved Evidence Based
assessment.

•  Evaluation of individual service encounter data that is submitted through the
Department's Phoenix reporting system wiD inform care monitoring and ongoing
agency wide quality service monitoring.

'• Submission of monthly Balance Sheet and Pi^it and Loss Statements to the
Department for ongoing evaluation of the programs fiscal Integrity.

•  Engagement In financial and programmatic audita to ensure fiscal Integrity is
maintained and programming is meeting the needs of (ndivlduats served.

As referenced in Exhibit C-l. Revisions to Standard Contracl Language. Paragraph 2 of the
attached contract, the. parties have the option to extend the agreement for up four (4) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties
and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the sixty (60) bed Transitional
Housing Programs may not be available to individuals in need of transitional residential treatment
services who are tiansitioolng from NHH or a DRF to the community which. In turn, limils the
availabiiity of beds for individuals awaiting inpatient hospital services across the State.

Area served: Statewide

Respect^Uy submlttt

ri A. Shibinette

"Commissioner

Th4 OtporVntnl ef Health and Human Servian'MUtion iMtaJein ammuniliet ond fiunilin
in providinf epportuniliet fer eitiunt to achieve health and indtptndtnet.
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FORM PAJMBCRP-STCvcreloB 12/11/2019)

SubJ(ct:_Trfinsitional Housing Programs(SS'202I-DBH-03-TRANS-01)

N«tce: This a^remmi end ell of iu ttndmenu shell becomt puWcc upon submission to Covcmor end
Executive Council for cpprovel. Any iarormiticn (het is privete. oonfidmiiel or proprieiBry must
be cleerly identified (o the agency «nd egrced to in writiftg prior to signing the contrta.

ACRECMENT

1be State of New Hampshire and the Centractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDEKTIFICATION.

I.I Slate Agency Name

Nrw Hsmpihira Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Addrcts

l?9 Pleaoni Soect

Cfoncord.HH 03301-3157

1.3 Concranor Name

NFI North, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

I.S Conlracicr Phone

Number

(603)746-7550

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-922010-
4117

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2032

l.t Price Limitation

$2,400,000

1.9 Conosaing Officer for State Agency

Nathan 0. V/hlie, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 r Cof^utgr Signature^

^ ̂ ̂ Date: ^||*t|7t)
1.1.^ Name end Title of Contractor ̂ putory
+b-*l L. tfi

-  i/6i- /L
1.13 Sta\ Agency Signature 1.14 Nome ar>d Title ofStaie Agency Signatory

1.15 Approve) by the N.H. Department of Adtninistntiion. Division of Personnel fi/o/]^rca/>/c^

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Anomey General (Form. Substance and Execution) OfoppikabU)

06/26/20

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (\f oppikabU)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of4
Contractor Initials

Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Snie of New

Hampthire, scting through (he agency identified in block 1.1
(^State"), engages cont/nctor identified in block 1.3
C'Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shoil perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the aitachcd EXHIBIT B which is tncorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATEXrOMPLmON OF SERVICES.

3.1 Norwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subjea to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the pa/ties hereundcr, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and ftxecutive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17.
unless no such approval is required, in which.case the Agreement
tholl become cffeaive on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effecti ve Date").
.3.2 If the Contracior commences the Services prior to (he
Effective Date, ail Services performed by the Contraaor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at dte sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall luive no liability to the Concractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor' for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all So^vices by (he Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. conditional NATURE OF agreement.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations- of the Stale hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriotion of
funds affected by any state or fcdcrol legislative or e.xecu(ive
action that reduces, eliminAtes or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provide in GXHIBrT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liobte for ony payments
hereunder in e.<(ccss of such available appropnaied hinds, (n the
event of 0 reduction or lerminotion of appropriated -lunds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the righi to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement intmediaiely upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

evcnl funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. contract price/prjce limitation/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms ofpayment
are ideniified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporaied herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by Ihe Stoic of the (»niraci price shall be die
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature inc^trred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the-Services. The State shall
have no liabilify to the Contractor otha than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserva the right to of^et from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contniaor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.K. RSA S0:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
conuary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the loul of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conneciion with the performance of (he Services, (he
Contractor shall comply with ell applicuble statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of fodcral, state, county or municipal
authoriries whi^ impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights end equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies pfthe United States, the Contracted
shall comply with all federal e.xecutive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations artd guidelines as ihe
Slate or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall olio comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of thb Agreement, the Contractor shall not
disaiminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or notional origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6-3. Ihe Ccntractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of (he Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofoscerraining compliance with oil rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The.Contractor shall at its owTt expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform Ihe Scrvnces. The Concmcier worranli mat

all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise aulhorizxd to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for o period of six (6) months oflcr the
Completion Date in block 1.7, (he Contractor shall not (lire, and
shall noi permit any subcontractor or other person, finn or
corporation with whom it Is engaged in o combined efTon to
perform (he Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or- performance of this Agrecmenc This
provision shall survist terminatioo of this Agreement'.
7.3 The Controcltng Ofllcer specifictl in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's represenlnlive. In the event of any
dispute concerning the inierprctalion of this Agreement, the
Contracting Orficcr's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
Clontractor Iniliats

Date ^
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8. EVEffTOF default/remedies.
8.1 Any one or more of the following ects or ominlons of the
Contreaor shAll ccnsinne an event ofdefault hereunder CEvent
of Default");
8.1.1 rotlure to perform the Services saiisfaciorily or on
schedule;

1.1.2 bilure to submit any report required haeunder; antUor
8.1.3 failure to paform any otha covenant, term or condition of
this Agreonent.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any oik, or more, or all, of the following octions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a uritten notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied v^ihin, in the absence of
a greater or leaser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and If the Event of Default is not timely cured,
termirtaie Uiis Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Coniraaor a wriQcn notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made unda this
Agreement and adaing that the portion of the coniraa price ,
which would othawisc Kcrue to the Contractor during the
period fnsm the date of such notice until such time as the Stale
determines that die Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid (o-the Conrraaor;
8.2.3 givo the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off againsi any other obligittions the State may
owe to the Cortract or any damages the State suffers by reason of
itny Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Coniraciof a wrincn notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, taminaie the
Agreement and pursue atty of its remedies, at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hacof after
any Event of Oefouli shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard tu thai Event of Defbult. or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver ofthe right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or oiha Event of
Default on (he port of the Controcta.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Suic may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days wrinen notice to the Contractor that
the Slate is exercising its option to taminaie the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agrcemcni for
any rcuson o(ha than the completion of (he Services, the
Conlracior shaJI. at the State's disaetion. deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (13) days aflcr the date
of termination, a report fTermtnaiion Report") describing in
detail ell Services performed, and the conlntct price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject mottcr,
content, and number of copies of the Tcnriination Report sholl
be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the anached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's disaetion, the Corttracior
shall, within 15 days of notice of early lermmation. develop and

submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATa/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shoJlmcan all
in formation and things developed or obtained during the
.performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but noi limited to. ell studies, reports,
Hies, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, compula programs, computa printouts, notes,
letters, mcmorunda, pupers, and documents, all >^ciher
finished or unfinish^.
10.2 AH data and any property which has been received fro«n
(he State or purchos^ with ftmds provided for (hat purpose
under this Agrccnteni, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon tesminaiion
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 C^ndcntiaiiiyofdata shall be governed byN.H. RSA
chapia 91 -A or other txisting law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the SiMc.

11. CONTRA(rrOR'S RELATION.TOTHE state. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contraaor is in all respects
an independent contructa, rand is neiiha an agent nor en
onploycc of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, ̂ cnts or membas shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
otha emolument provided by the State to iu employee.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.
12.1 "Rte Contractor shnll not assign, or othavvise transfer any.
interest in this Agreement without the prior wrincn notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
(he assignment, and a wriitoi consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) maga,
consolidation, or a transaction or saies of related transactions in
which a third party, logaJia with iu afTiliaics, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty pacent (50%) a more ofthe
voting shares or similar equity intacsis, or combined voting
power ofiho Contntctor. or (b) the sale of all or subsianiblly all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subconirBCtcd by the
Contractor without prior wrinen notice and consent ofthe Sute.
The Slate is entitled to copies ofali subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by tuty provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless othcnvisc exempted bylaw,
the Contractor shnll indemnify and hold hannicis the State, its
olTiccrs und employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any pasonal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright mOnngeniatt, cr otha cloims osscncd againsi
the State, iu ofiicai or employees, which arise out ofCor which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of (he

Page 3of4

Contractor Iniiialsl-^L^
Date 6ji*}/z4
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Contraaor; or subcontroctore, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intatuoniil conduct. The Stale shall not
be liable for any costs incuned by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing he/tin
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver ofthe sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 sholi survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain In force, and shall require tiny
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in fofce, the
rollowing insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liobility insurance against all claims

of bodily injury, death or prope^ damage, in amounts of not
less than SI,000,000 pa occurrmcc and S2,000.000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special taiuseof loss coverage form covering all properiy
subjeci 10 subparograph 10.2 haein, in en amount not less than
80% of the whole replacancni value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 haein shall be
on policy forms and endwsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. pe|»vtment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Ccntrocior shtlj furnish to the Contracting OfTica
identified in block 1.9. or his or ha successor, a certilicate($) of
insurance for oil insuronce required unda this Agreement.
Contractor shaJ) also fumisJi to the Contracting OfHcer identified
in block 1.9, or his or ha successor. certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required unda this Agrconent no
laia than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccrtificaic(s) of insurance ond cny
renewals thaeof shall be attached and are incorporated haein by
rcfacncc.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, (he Contractor agrees, catifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or e.xempi
from, the requircmenti of N.H. RSA chopta 281 -A ("Workers'

Conipf/ira//on7-
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject (o the requirancnts
of N.H. RSA chspia 281-A. Contraaor shall maintain, lutd
require any subcontractor a assignee to secure and muinuiin,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
•aivities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. ITieCoitracior shall furnish die Contracting Oflica
idcmificd tn block 1.9, or his or ha successor, proof of Workas'
Compensation in the manna desaibed in N.H. RSA chapta
281-A and any applicable rcnc^val(s) thaeof, which shall be
attached and ore incorporated haein by referenoc. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums a for tiny other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcoho-aclor or emplo>^e of Controctor,
which might arise unda applicable State of New hlampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
paformance of the Services unda this AgreemenL

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the otha party
shall be deemed to have beai duly delivaed or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in i United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreaneni may be amended, waived
or discharged only by on insuument in writing signed by the
parties haeto and only alia approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
unda (he circumstances pursuant to State law. rule w policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. Thi« Agrecmtnt thull
be governed, intaprded and construed In accordance with the
laws of (he State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective succcssas
and assigns. The wording us^ in (his Agreement is the wording
chosoi by the panics to express their mutual intern, and no rule
of consiruaion shall be applied against ot in &vor of any party.
Any octions arising out of this Agrconent shall be brought and
maintained iii New Hampshire Supaia Court which shol] have
exclusive jurisdiction thaeof.

19. CONFUICTINC TERMS In the event of a conllict

between the tarns of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) ond/a attachments and amendment thaeof, the terms of the
P>37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD Parties. THc panics hacto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. headings. 1lie headings throughout the Agreement arc
for refaence purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
intaprctation, construction or meaning of the provisions of (his
Agreement,

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modi^'lng
provisions set fordi in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
haein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthc provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurl.tdiction to be
contrary to any state a federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in hill force and rffeci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in n number of countapans. each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
undastanding between the panics, and supersedes ail prior
agreements and understandings witii respect to (he subject matta
haoof.

Page 4 of4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P'37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows;

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2020 ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional year(s)
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
•Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3. as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

$S-202l-OBH-03-TruwS^1 EjWWi A • RovUtona lo St»Adart Coftf/acJ Prevttlonj Contraclo* InRlali ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Transitional Housing Programs

Exhibit B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure services are available In the following Mental Health
regions:

1.1.1. A forty {AO) bed TransKionaJ Housing Program on the grounds of Governor
Hugh Gallen State Office Park Campus In Concord, New Hampshire.

1.1.2. An eight (6) bed Transitional Housing Program in mental health region one (1)
at the Contractor's Bethlehem tocation.

1.1.3. A twelve (12) bed Transitional Housing Program In mental health region four
(4) located at the Contractor's Bradford location.

1.2. The contractor shall submit copies of tobacco-free policies that apply to both inside and
. on the grounds of each residence within thirty (30) days of the effective contract date.

1.3. The Contractor shall adhere to Administration of Medication standards as outlined in
NH Administrative Rule He-M 1200. Medication Standards, Part 1202, Administration
of Medications in Behavioral Health Programs (hereinafter referred to as He-M 1200.
Part 1202).

1.4. The Contractor shall complete and maintain certification and licensure In accordance
with NH Administrative Rule He-M-1000, Housing, Part 1002. Certrfication Standards
for Behavioral Health Community Residences (hereinafter referred to as He-M 1000,
Part 1002), and NH Administrative Rule He-P 600, Residential Care and Health Facility
Rules, Part 814, Community Residences at the Residential Care and Supported
Residential Care Level (hereinafter referred to as He-P 800, Part 814).

1.5. The Contractor shall comply with all State and federal laws and regulations
pertaining to the lioensure and operation of a community residential program.

1.6. The Contractor shall be In compliance with applicable federal and State laws,
rules and regulalions, and applicable policies and procedures adopted by the
Department and currently in effect, and as they may be adopted or arr^ended
during the contract period.

1.7. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean business
days unless otherwise specified.

1.8. Transitional Housing Program

1.6.1. The Contractor shall operate a Transilional Housing Program (Program)
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week for the supervision
for clients, who are:

1.8.1.1. Eighteen (18) years of age or older; and

1.6.1.2. Eligible for community mental health services In accordance with
New Hampshire (NH) Administrative Rule Chapter He-M 400.
Community Mental Health, Part 401, Eligibility Determination and
Individual Service Planning (hereinafter referred to as H^M 400,

NFI North. Inc. ExNbJtS Contractor Initials
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Now HampshJro Deportmont of Health and Human Sorvlcos
Transitional Housing Programs

Part 401).

1.8.2. The Contractor shall operate Transitional Housing Programs to provide
housing and rehabilitative menial health services and supports for clients
ensuring:

1.6.2.1. Any bed is available to dients with and without Insurance.

1.6.2.2. Any bed is available to clients regardless of their ability to pay.-

1.8.2.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure that no rnoro tt^an ftve (5)
percent of bed days are available to individuals without

■ Insurance.

1.6.3. The Contractor shall provide the following services on an individual and group
basis, as necessary, in accordance with NH Administrative Rule He-M 400.
Cornmunity Mental Health. Part 426. Community Mental Health Services
(hereinafter referred to as He-M 400. Part 426):

1.8.3.1. Individualized Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Services:

1.6.3.2. Psychotherapeutic Services, including sex offender treatment;

1.8.3.3. Targeted Case Management Services;

1.8.3.4. Partial Hospitalization Services; and

1.8.3.5. Medication Related Services.

1.8.4. The Contractor shall provide assistance and instruction to improve and
maintain a client's skills in basic daily living, personal development, and
community activities, that shall include, but are not be limited to:

1.8.4.1. Personal decision making;

1.8.4.2. Personal care, budgeting, shopping, and other functional skills;

1.8.4.3. Household chores and responsibilities;

1.8.4.4. Having relationships with people with and without mental illness;

1.8.4.5. Accessing a wide range of integrated community activities
including recreational, vocational, and cultural;

1.8.4.6. Participating in religious services,and practices of the citent's
choosing; and

1.8.4.7. Choosing and wearing clothing that is neat, clean, in good repair,
and appropriate to the season and activity.

1.8.5. The Contractor shall provide the written processes for referrals, admissions,
evaluations and discharges to the Department no later than thirty (30) days
from the contract effective contract dale.

1.8.6. The Contractor shall serve clients referred from New Hampshire Hospital.
Designated Receiving Facilities, or Community Mental Health Providers who:

SaNFl Nortn. Inc. ExMbli 6 Conuaclor iniUais
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1.8.6.1. Have a severe mental illness (SMI) or severe and persistent
mental illness (SPMI) and meet eligibility for community mental
health services at a community mental health program, as deHned
in He-M 400, Pail 401;

1.6.6.2. Require extensive support and rehabilitation to. successfully
transition from NHH or a ORF before moving to a less restrictive
alternative in the client's community of choice; and

1.6.6.3. Have been determined to no longer require the level of care
provided by NHH or a DRF,

1.8.7. The Contractor shall give clients from NHH first priority of admittance to the
Transitional Housing Program, followed by clients from DRFs and the CMHPs.
The Contractor shall: .

1.8.7.1. Maintain a list of referred clients, in order of referral date, for
whom admission is sought, but a t>ed is not yet available.

>  1.8.7.2. Collaborate with the Department on the data elements to be
captured in the Est. The agreed upon Qst shall'be made available
to the Department weekly, at a minimum.

1.8.7.3. Notify the Department, In writing, prior to enrolling non-NHH'
clienis into the Program.

1.8.8. The Contractor shall prioritize clients referred by NHH by having a referral.
admission, and evaluation process (hat:

1.6.8.1. Places current inpatient clients at NHH ahead of all DRF end
CMHP referrals;

1.8.8.2. Provides for a written referral protocol that includes a review and
evaluation of the client's current situation, assessment of need
and disposition;

1.8.8.3. Responds to all refenals. in writing, as to the client acceptance or
denial Into the Transitional Housing Program, including an
explanation of any contir>gencies placed on the acceptance, or
the reasons for denial of the client;

1.8.8.4. Responds to the client, with a decision in writing, within fourteen
(14) business days of receipt with a copy to the Department;

1.8.8.5. Notifies the Department in writing of any accepted referrals prior
to admission and transition into the Transitional Housing
Program;

1.8.8.6. Includes an admission process approved by (he Department that
ensures the successful entry of accepted referrals into the
program. In the event that a referral is not' successful in the
transition process, the Contractor sKall communicate with NHH or
the agency that initiated the referral, verbally and in wri^^o, a&Ao

NF( North. IfW. ExNbllB Contradof Initlala I

SS-2021-OBH-03-TRANS-01 PageSofiB DateO r^j'2o



DocuSign Envelope ID; 9D5DB10C-C391-4485-9F99-3586930BAFDA

DocuSign Envelope 10:0504OA2»8C05-43F9^6-2398A533S8lC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Service
Transitional Hcuslr^g Programs

the reason(5) for the unsuccessful transition; and

1.8.8.7. ' Includes approval by the Department for all clients being referred
by the community.

1.8.8. The Contractor shall develop and operate Transitional Housing Programs with
residential and rehabilitative mental health services and supports ar\d be
operational no later than sixty (60) calendar days from the contract effective
date.

1.8.10. The Contractor shall beoorrte an enrolled Medicatd provider through the
Deparlment's Medlcaid program within in 120 days of the effective contract
date.

1.6.11. In the event the Department incorporates Medlcaid eligible Transitional
Housing Programfs) with its Managed Care Organizations, the Contractor
shall be notified by the Department and provided 120 days to enroll as a
provider with the Managed Care Orgatilzatlons for all Medicald eligible
Transitional Housing Programs. Proof of enrollmertt shall be provided to the
Department within seven (7) days of enrollment.

1.8.12. The Contractor shall have a discharge process for clients who are discharged
from the Transitional Housing Program that;

1.8.12.1. Supports a maximum stay of two (2) years per clieiit, per episocfe,
unless otherwise approved by the Department in writing.

1.8.12.2. Ensures participation in discharge planning meetings with
community mental health centers. NHH, other providers, and
natural supports;

t.8.12.3. Provides for a written discharge plan that includes an evaluation
- of the client's current situation, disposition and transition plan for
moving back into the community,

1.8.12.4. Retains the client's bed. in the event that:
I

1.8.12.4.1. A Client's conditional discharge Is revoked, and the
client is readmitted to NHH. for up to thirty (30)
days.

1.8.12.4.2. A client is voiuntarily readmitted to NHH. for up to
thirty (30) days.

1.6.12.5. Demonstrates development and implementation of a
collaborative relationship with the community mental health

•  program and natural supports, including family, to develop the
terms of conditional discharges pursuant to RSA 135-0:50 and
NH Administrative Rule He-M 600, New Hampshire Hospital. Part
609, Conditional Discharge, and to develop treatment plans
designed to return each client to the community.

1.8.13. The Contractor shall submit a transitional plan that transitions client^t^aj^k into
NFl North. Irw. EimibitB Conir»c(or InlUais.
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the community to die Department no later than 30 days from the contract
effective date, which includes, but is not limited to;

1.6.13.1. Specific steps to move exisling program participants into more
integrated community settings. .

1.8.13.2. A person-centered plan that incorporates their needs, and safety
of themselves and (he public per Administrative Rule He-M 400,
Part 401 and He-M 400. Part 408.

1.8.13.3. Coordination with the client's' loul community mental health
program, peer support agencies, and other natural supports to
provide other services and supports to the dient in the
community.

1.8.13.4. ' InvolvemenI of the dtenfs family to support integration into the
community, with the client's consent:

1.8.13.5. Identification of any barriers to placement in the community with
a plan to overcome those barriers, that emphasizes interventions.
necessary to promote more opportunities for integration into the
community.'

1.9. Medical Services

1.9.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) registered nurse is
available during the hours of 8:00 AM (EST) to 10:00 PM (EST). Monday
through Friday, and 8:00 AM (EST) to 4:30 PM (EST) on Saturdays and
Sundays, or the availability of on-call nursing that is available to come on-site
during the vreekends and evening hours. The Contractor shall ensure;

1.9.1.1. Services are provided on site, or In an office setting providing
there is no medical reason to provide the services on site.

1.9.1.2. Medical services include, but are not limited to:

1.9.1.2.1. An annual review cortducted by the registered nurse
in consultation with the client's Primary Care
Physician, of:

1.9.1.2.1.1. Health history:

1.9.1.2.1.2. Health status;

1.9.1.2.1.3. Supports i.dentined or needed to
maintain physical, mental, and social
well-being incorporating; and

1.9.1.2.1.4. All Core Standardized Assessment

required domains.

1.9.1.2.2. Instruction in, and assistance with, taking prescribed
medications Independently: In accordance with He-
M 1200, Part 1202, Administration of Mer^tioM In

NFl North. Inc. ExMbli B ConlOKlorlniUals.
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the Transitional Housing Program; and

1.9.1.3. Residential staff are trained to meet the requirements specrfied in
He-M 1200. Part 1202, Administration of Medications in the
Transitional Housing Program.

1.10. Health Services

1.10.1. The Contractor shall provide and triage health services for medical and
psychiatric needs twenty-four (24) hours per day seven (7) days per week.

1.10.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) masters level
clinician is on*call evenings, weekends and holidays to provide;

1.10.1.1.1. Emergency treatment:

1.10.1.1.2. Crisis intervention;

1.10.1.1.3. Coordination of Involuntary Emergency Admission
petitions, in accordance with New Hampshire (NH)
Revised Statute Annotated (RSA) 135-C;27 and NH
RSA 135-C:20; and

1.10.1.1.4. Coordination of revocation of conditional discharges,
in accordance with NH RSA 135-0:51.

1.10.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) registered
nurse Is available on-call the remainder of each day the masters
level clinician is not on-call. Including weekends and holidays, to-
provide:

1.10.1.2.1. Education;

1.10.1.2.2. Problem solving and support regarding medications;
and

1.10.1.2.3. Response to health-related concerns.

1.11. Specialized Treatment

1.11.1. The Contractor shall ensure sex offender sen/ices; hsk assessment
evaluations; and treatment for clients who have co-occurring disorders, or
require sex offender treatment, or other court-mandated treatments ere
available, as necessary or as requested by the Department, ensuring services
are not be unduly delayed or denied.

1.12. Wellness tManagement

1.12.1. The Contractor shall support a culture of weltness and provide clients with
access to services and activities, including but not limited to, 'Healthy
Choices-Healthy Changes*.

1.13. Adult Needs and Strengths Assessment (ANSA)

1.13.1. The Contractor shall ensure clinicians are certified in the use of the New

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Conlrsdorlniti&ls
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Hampshire version of ANSA 2.0. or other Department-approved evidence-
based tool if they are a clinician serving the adult population.

1.13.2. The Contractor shall ensure clinicians obtain certification through the
completion of the Praed Foundation test.

1.13.3. The Contractor shall submit ratings to the Department via the database
• managed for the Department in order to allow client-level, r^lonal and
statewide outcome reporting by the 15th of every month, in ANSA format.

1.13.4. The Contractor shall ensure ratings generated by the New Hampshire version
of the ANSA 2.0 or other Department-approved tools are utilized to:

1.13.4.1. Develop an individualized, person-centered treatment plan.

1.13.4.2. Document and review progress, toward goals and objectives and
assess continued need for community mental health senrices.

1.13.4.3. Assist in determining eligibility for Slate psychiatric rehabilitation
services.

1.13.5. The Contractor shall document assessments using the New Hampshire
version of the ANSA 2.0. or other approved tool when conducting re
assessments in accordance with the timeframes specified in He-M 401.

1.13.6. The Contractor shall ensure an alternate evidence-based approved
assessment meets all ANSA 2,0 domains in order to meet consistent reporting
requirements. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.13.6.1. Written approval is received from the Department prior to
implementing a substitute for the ANSA 2.0. •

J

1.13.6.2. Monthly reporting of dat& through the substituted system includes
the abilKy to complete client-level, regional and statewide
reporting.

1.14. Pre-Admlsslon Screening and Annual Resident Review

114 1 The Contractor shall assist the Pre-Admission Screening and Annual-
Resident Review (PASARR) Office of the Department to meet the
requirements of the PASARR provisions of the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1967.

1.14.2. Upon request by the PASARR office and wHh the appropriate authorization to
release information, the Contractor shall provide the PASARR office with the
information necessary to determine the existence of mental illness or mental
retardation in a nursing facility appficant or resident and shall conduct,
evaluations and examinations needed 1o provide the data to determine If a
person being screened or reviewed requires nursing facility care and has
active treatment needs.

1.15. Recovery and Resiliency Approaches

1.15.1. The Contractor shall provide clients with access to services that the
NFl North. Inc. Exhibit B Contiactpr Iniliels
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values of recovery ar>d resiliency through an emphasis on a strength-based
approach and person-centered senrice planning, In accordance' with NH
Administrative Rules He-M 400, Part 401 and He-M 400, Part 408.

V1S.2. The Contractor shall utilize the client's individual service plan to assist the
client with identifying, cultivating and sustaining relationships with peers,
family members, neighbors, landlords, employers, and others in order to
create a network of support that will build resiliency and strength based
recovery and wellness skills.

1.16. Complaint Manager Services ^
1.16.1. The Contractor shall designate a staff member to perform the responsibilities

of complaint manager in accordance" with New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-M 200. Practice and Procedure. Part 204, Rights Protection Procedures
for Mental Health Sendees.

1.17. Access to Primary Care Physicians

1.17.1. The Contractor shall assist each client with securing a focal primary care
• physician (PCP) of the client's choosing, within thirty (30) days from the
effective contract date.

1.17.2. The Contractor shall coordinate client care with the PCP.

1.17.3. The Contractor shall exchange health Information at regular intervals with the
written consent of the client or guardian.

1.18. Coordinate Care with the Legal System

1.18.1. The Contractor shall assess the legal commitment status of clients .residing in
the program and, If deemed appropriate, provide for the continuation of the
commitment via the proper legal process.

1.18.2. The Contractor shall provide coordination of care with the legal system when
indicated, which may Include, but is not limited to;

1.18.2.1. The NH Department of Corrections.

1.18.2.2. The applicable NH County Attorney's Office.

1.18.2.3. The NH Attorney General's Office.

1.19. Quality Assurance

1.19.1. The Contractor shall perform, or cooperate in the performance of, quality
improvement and utilization review activities as determined necessary and
appropriate by the Department, within timeframes specified by the
Department, in order to insure the efficient and effective administration of the
NH Medicaid program.

1.19.2. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are not limited to:

119 2 1 Mainlaining detailed client records as required by He-M 400, Part

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contraclor Initiflla /
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1.19.2:2. Submitting data necessary to comply with federal reporling
requirements.

1.20. Client's Contribution for Clothing, Food and Housing

1.20.1. The Contfaclor shall ensure clients are not required to sign residential leases.

1.20.2. The Contractor shall ensure clients are aware of and abide by housing rules.

1.20.3. The Contractor shall collect up to thirty (30) percent of each client's income to
be applied toward the cost of housing and shall collect an addKionat amount,
subject to approval by the Department in writing, of each client's income to be
applied toward the cost of clothing, food, and other essential items. Financial ,
reporting and analysis of client contributions shall be monitored by the
Department upon request, through the auditing of client accounts and
recondliation of the Contractor's expenses charged to clients in comparison'
to expenses" charged to the Department for general fund reimbursement.

1.20.4. The Contractor shall establish a policy in which the agency works with the
client on establishing a clothing and food allowance based on Income and

'  address steps to support the client in preparation for, and management of. a
rent increase upon discharge.

1.20.5. • The Contractor shall provide the process and method for calculating;
collecting; accounting for the client's contribution and share of expenditures;
and for maintaining records for collections and expenses to the Department
for approval no later than ten (10) days from the contract effective dale.

1.20.6. The Contractor shall ensure client contribution polldes. processes and
methods are designed to support the client's return to Independent living while
pfOvidir>g ciient contribution toward the client's dothing. food and housing
costs.

1.20.7. The Contractor shall ensure clients without incomes are not denied entry to
the program due to an inability to provide a client contribution.

1.20.8. The Contractor shall ensure client funds in excess of client contribution, rf
• maintained by the Contractor, are kept separate from program operation
revenues and expenses, and in dient-spedfic individual accounts.

1.21. Staffing

1.21.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to ensure die safety of
dients. staff, and the community.

1.21.2. The Contractor shall ensure staffing includes, but is not limited to:

1.21.2.1. One (1) Medical Director who:

1.21.2.1.1. Possess a valid license to practice medicine in the
United States;

\

1.21.2.1.2. Possess a valid license to practice medicinb in New
Hampshire: and meets the requirements^of RSA

NFI Noith, inc. • Exti'd" B Contractor initials v^)
SS-2021-DBH-03-TftANS-01 P8ge9o(18 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID; 9D5DB1X-C391-4485-9F99-3586930BAFDA

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0SO4OA2»«C05-43F9^6-2396A533561C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

135.C: 2. XIII;

' 1.21.2.1.3. Is Board-eligible or Board-certified in psychiatry
according to the regulations of the American Board
of Psychiatry and Neurology. Inc., or its successor
organization at the time of hiring; and

1.21.2.1.4. Maintained Board eligibility or certification
throughout his or her tenure as Medical Director.

1.21.2.2.' One (1) adrnlnisirator or Director who is responsible for the day-
.to-day management, supervision, and operation of the residenoe.

1.21.2.3. One (1) registered nurse, licensed in accordance with NM RSA
32&-B. who is responsible for the delivery and supervision, of
nursing services.

l.2l.2.i-i. One (1) registered nurse, as sited in Subparagraph
1.21.2.1. may be on-call during weekends and off-
hours and shall provide teiehealth and -face-to-face
services.

1.21.2.4. One (1) nurse trainer who provides supervision to any staff
member authorized to administer medications.

1.21.2.5. A sufficient number of personnel who shall provide nursing
services, consisting of registered nurses. licensed practical
nurses, and other staff. Nurses shall be licensed as required by
RSA 326-B.

1.21.2.6. A sufficient number of direct care personnel who meet the twenty-
four (24) hour scheduled and unscheduled needs of the clients in
accordance with the Individual client service plans, which includes
but Is not limited to one (1) part-time peer support specialist as
defined in NH Administrative Rule He-M400. Part 426.13 (d)(4)
during daytimo programming hours.

1.21.3. The Contractor shall have a minimum of-one (1) direct staff member per
residence, per shift, when a client is occupying the residence.

1.21.4. The Contractor shall provide a staffing contingency plan to the Department for
approval within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date, which Includes,
but Is not limited to;

'  1.21.4.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of
key-personnel or other personnel before or after signing of the
Agreement;

1.21.4.2. Allocation of additional resources to the Agreement in the event
of Indbility to meet any performance standard;

1.21.4.3. Discussion of time frames necessary for obtaining replacements;

NFI North, \nc. Exhit>ii B Contractor Initials
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'i.21.4.4. Capabtiities to provide, in a timely manner, replacements and
additions with comparable experience; and

1.21.4.5. Method of bringing. replacements and additions up-to-date ■
regarding this Agreement.

1.22. Emergency Response Plan,

1.22.V The Contractor shall submit an Emergency Plan for clients in the event of a
natural, intentional or accidenta! inddent or threat that affects the client's
health and safety to the Department for approval within ten (10) days from the
effective contract date.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance with
the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy Rule)
(45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate
Agreerhent, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement In
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

*2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The. Contractor"'shall meel with the Department quarterly, or as requested by the
Department, to review quarterly programmatic reports submitted in a format specified
by the Departmient. The Contractor shall ensure data elements reported include, but
are not be limited to;

3.1.1. Total number of vacant and occupied beds during the reporting period.

3.1.2. Total number of individuals referred, admitted, and discharged during the
reporting period.

3.1.3. All admitted clienl's region of origin prior to placement at the transitional
housing program.

3.1.4. All discharged clienTs region of discharge from the transitional housing
program.

3.1.5. All client's legal status such as pendir>9 charges, convictions, involuntary
emergency admission (lEA) status.

3.1.6. All clienTs progress towards Independent living including: •

3.1.6.1. Hospital readmission rate(s);

3.1.6.2. Projected discharge plans for each client; ^
3.1.6.3. Clinical updates;.and ^

NFiNortti. Inc. ' Exhibit B Coniraclor IniUalst-
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3.1.6.4. Progfammatic offerings, which may include but are not limited to:

3.1.6.4.1. Social activities and outings.

3.1.6.4.2. Vocational support services.

3.1.6.4.3. Wellness g roup s.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit all requiried data elements via the Phoenix system, except
for the ANSA data, ensuring any necessary system changes are completed within six
(6) months from the effective contract dale.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit individual client-level demographic artd encounter data.
Including non-biUable individual-specific senrices to the Department's Phoenix system
or on an alternative format • identified by the Department, as specified by the
Department.

3.4. The Contractor shall ensure all client data submitted includes a Medicaid ID number for
clients enrolled in Medicaid arid data elements that include, but are not limited to:

3.4.1. Client's housing status upon discharge;

3.4.2. Employment status;

3.4.3. Smoking status; and

3.4.4. Mental health and substance use dlsofder{s) diagnoses.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit monthly data no later than the fifteenth (iSlh) of each
monlh for the prior month's data, unless otherwise approved by the Department in
writing.

3.6. The Contractor shall review the Department's tabular summaries within five (5)
business days of the summaries becoming available.

3.7. The Contractor shall ensure submitted data represents a minimum of:

3.7.1. Ninety-eight (98) percent of billable sen/Ices provided; and

3.7.2. Ninety-eight (98) percent of clients served by the Contractor.

3.6. The Contractor shall ensure submitted service and member data shall conforms to
submission requirements, at a minimum of:

3.8.1: Ninety-eight (98) percent of the data records; and

3.8.2. Ail unique member identifiers shall be accurate and valid,

3.9. The Contractor shall submit quarterly program status reports to the Department no later
than the 15th of the month following the quarter as outlined and identified by the
Department.

3.10, The Contractor shall submit monthly Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements.
The Contractor shall ensure:

3.10.1. The Profit and Loss Statement includes a budget column allowing for budget-
to-actual analysis. k ̂
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3.10.2. Statements are submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of each month
and are based on the accrual method of accounting and include the
Contractor's total revenues and expenditures, whether or not generated by.
or resulting from, funds provided pursuant to the contract.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shail actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to enhance
contract martagemenl, improve results, and adjust program delivery and policy based

'  on successful outcomes.

4.2.- The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, incfuding client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.3. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the Department in a
format specified by the Department.

5. AdditlonalTerms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative ̂ hanges

.5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation or
court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the State
has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically. Appropriate Services (CLAS)
'>

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed descnption of the
language assistarKe services they will provide to persons with limited English
proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

5.3. • Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials
prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services of the-
Contract shall include the following statement, 'The preparation of this
(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided
in part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as
were available or required, e.g., the tJnited States Department of Health and
Human Services.*

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures. > ' '

5.3.3.2. Resource directories,

i^D
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5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the'
contract without prior'written approval from the Oepaiiment-.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

S.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with all laws, orders and. regutatior\$ of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with
respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit shall k>e required for the
operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, the
Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with
the foregoing requirements, the Contractor heret^y covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all rules,
orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal
and the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local
building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

S.5.1. If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals such
eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal
and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and proc^ures.

5.5.-2. Eligibility determinations shall be rhade on forms provided by the Department
for that purpose and shall be made and remade-at such times as are
prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder,
which file shall include all Information necessary to support an eligibility
determination and such other information as the Department requests. The
Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or
require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as
' well as individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding .

that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all
applicants for services shall be permitted'to fill cut an application form and • ' )
that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Records fN r\
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6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all-ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs
such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for

1 materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient).
' records regarding the-provislon of services and all invoices submitted to the

-  Department to obtain payment for such services.

6.1.4. Medicel records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the Department,
the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained
pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.
Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum nurht>er of units provided for In
the Contract and upon'payment of the price limitation hereunder. the Contract and all
the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the
Contract are to be performed after the end of the term-of this Contract and/or survive
the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review
of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by Uie Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall r^ain the right, at its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such
sums-from the Contractor.

7. .Use of Premises for the State Owned Buildings - Governor Hugh Gallen State Office
Park Campus

7.1. The Contractor shall agree to use the State of New Hampshire owned buildings
identified by the Department to provide the Transitionai Housing Program on the Hugh
Gallen State Office Park South Campus In Concord. New Hampshire. ,

7.2. The Contractor shall agree to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with New
Hampshire Hospital (NHH) for grounds and building maintenance other than specified
in Subparagraph 7.1.

7.3. The Contractor shall agree to the use of premises of State of New Hampshire owned
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buildings in Subparagraph 7.1. as follows:

7.3.1. Routine building maintenance Is defined .as nonmal wear and tear of the
building structure, envelope, systems, hardware, and fixed asMts (not
including kitchen appliances)..

7.3.2. Routine building maintenance does not include damage resulting in abuse or
neglect by the Contractor, its agents, dients, and visitors.

7.4. The Contractor shall agree to the following responsibilities:

7.4.1. Establish accounts for all utilities (Natural Gas. Water, Sewer. Waste
Disposal and Electric) in the name of the Contractor, with NHM named as
'second' on each utility account. Invoices for each utility shall be sent directly
to. and paid by. the Contractor.

7.4:2. Be responsible for reimbursing the State based on allocated square footage
of the Howard Recreational Center.

7.4.3. Assign a liaison and backup to develop a Maintenance and Housekeeping
Checklist for routine repairs and mainteriance needs. The Maintenance and
Housekeeping Checklist witi be available for the Hospital to review and
prioritize during (he monthly inspection conducted by the Hospital. Liaisons
will be the only persons who shall contact Hospital Facilities or Environmental
Services Offices:

7.4.4. Liaison will be responsible for all keys, to include distribution, tracking, and
communication with the Hospital Facilities Office for lock repair or key
replacement;

7.4.5. Be responsible for routine household tasks, such as, moving of furniture,
changing light bulbs, and minor plumbing repairs, such as. toilet unclogging;

7.4.6. Be responsible for housekeeping in accordance with checklist references in
Paragraph 7.4.3. above;

7.4.7. Be responsible for window eir conditioners maintenance, repairs, ar>d
replacement;

7.4.8. Be responsible to call State Office Complex Police if there is an emergency
requiring maintenance after normal business hours;

7.4.9. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of household
appliances, such as refrigerators, dishwashers, washer and dryer, and
stoves;

7.4.10. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaping
features and decorations, such as gazebos, gazing balls, etc.;

7.4.11. Conduct monthly fire extinguisher inspections. In coordination with Hospital
Facilities Office. Maintain, or replace the extinguishers annually as
necessary;

7.4.12. Shall take responsibility for any damage due to occupancy, or leas^old
NFhNorth, Inc. £*tilWl8 Conlractcf Initials
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improvements including interior painting and floor covering repair or
replacement. In no case shall the Contractor make Improvements without the
written permission of the Mospltal Fadlities Office:

7.4.13. Properly maintain all equipment and will be responsible to pay for any
equipment needing replacement or repair;

7.4.14. Use the Department's Information Technology (IT) cables only as approved
by the IT Department;

7.4.15. Pay for the personal alarm ("Life Alert") system;

7.4.16. Be responsible for snow removal and de-icing of steps and walkways
adjacent to the buildings;

7.4.17. Be responsible for the purchase, supply, laundering, and management of all
linens (sheets, pillowcases, bath towels, and face cloths);

7.4.18. Be'responsible for laundering and managemeni of all client personal items;

7.4.19. Assure ail buildings are reasonably maintained, kept sanitary, and clean
between scheduled cleaning inspections and services provided by the
Hospital; and

7.4.20. Be responsible for disposal of recycling materials.

8. Termination Report and Transition Plan

8.1. In the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within fifteen
(15) days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the Departrnent a
Transillon Plan for service's under the Agreement, including but not limited to.
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

8.2. The Contractor'shall fully cooperate with Ihe Department and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement
and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the
Transition Plan to the State as requested.

8.3. In the event that clients receiving sen/Ices under the Agreement are "transifloned to
having services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transition Plan. The Transition Plan shall also specify the process for uninterrupted
delivery of 'any other services the Contractor provides under this Agreement.

8.4. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients, and other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications.in its Transition Plan submitted to the Stale as described above.

8:5. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the Department,
the United'States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records m^tained
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pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.
Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number of units provided for in
the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all
the obligatioris of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive
the termination of the Contract) shall tarminate, provided however, that if, upon review
of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the' right, at Its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such
sums from the Contractor.
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a (Subrecipien! or
Contractor). In accordance with 2 CFR 200.330:

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-.R&O, In
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for services provided to
individuals pursuant to this Agreement as follows:

3.1. For Medicaid enrolled individuals through the DHHS Medicaid Fee for
Service program in accordance with the current', publically posted Fee for
Service (FFS) schedule located at www.NHMMIS.NH.goy.

3.2. For Managed Care Organization enrolled individuals the Contractor shall
be reimbursed pursuant to the Contractor's agreement with the applicable
Managed Care Organization for such services.

3.3. For individuals with other health insurance or other coverage for the
services they receive, the Contractor will directly bill the other insurance or
payors.

3.4. For Individuals without health Insurance or other coverage for the services
they receive, and for operational costs.contained in.Exhibits C-1 and C-2
for which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek reimbursement from an
insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor will directly bill the
Oepiartment to access contract funds provided through this Agreement.
3.4.1. Invoices of this nature shall include general ledger detail indicating

the Department is only being invoiced for net expenses, shall only
be reimbursed up to the current Medicaid rate for the services
provided and contain the following items for each client and line item
of service:

\ 3.4.1.1. First and last name of client.

3.4.1.2. Date of birth.

3.4.1.3. Medicaid ID number.

3.4.1.4. Date of Service identifying date, units, and any possible
third party reimbursement received.

4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with
the approved line item, as specified In Exhibits C-l, Budget through Exhibit C-
2, Budget.
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EXHIBIT C

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
fifteenth (15th) working day of the follov^ng month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

. The Contractor shall ensure^the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed DHHS.DBHInvoicesMHS@dhhs.nh.90v, or invoices may be mailed to:

Tanja Godtfredsen
Department of Health and Human Services '
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

8. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form.P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7.
Completion Date.

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B. Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

10! The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, In
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit 6, Scope of Services.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,.the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, In whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if'lhe said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may. be made by written agreement of.both,parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

NFI NofUi. irtc. EitfidjilC Contradof Intiala

O$S-2021-08H-03-TFW4S-01 Paoe2d3 Dgia ^0
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Transitional Housing Programs

EXHIBIT C

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition 6 • The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor Is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. . If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements; Cost
Principies, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual

■  financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

13.5. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has l^een taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

NFl North, Inc.

SS-2021 -DBH-OMRANS^ t

ftav.01/0S/t9
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New Hairipshiro DepertmonI of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with ihe provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Oru9-Free Wortcplace Aa of 1988'(Pub. L. 100:690, Title V. SubtlUe D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute Ihe following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANb HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections S1S1-5160 of the Orug-Free
Workplace Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ctseq.).. The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out befow is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when Ihe agency awards the grant. False /
certification or violation of the certificalion shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government v^e suspension or debarment. Coniractors using .this form should
send it to: ' .

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In Ihe grantee's
workplace and specifying Ihe actloru that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees atxxjt
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse <n the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining e drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; end
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the stalemeni required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment,under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar ̂ ays after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including posilion title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was wortdng, unless the Federal agency

Ei^IWi O - C«ftincfltion regodlnp Drue Fr«« Vendor inltisb
WorXpface Regulwnents

onOMMVtioMs P«8» 1 of 2 Oato
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shaO include the
Identirication numberts) of each affected grant;

t .6. Tatdng one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of raceiving notice under
subperagreph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug atnise assistance or
rohabPilalion program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate ager>cy:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implemenlalioh of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3, 1.4. 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection vrilh (he specific grant.

Place of Performarice (street address, diy. county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Date

VendofName: Ajf-T 7
C

I.. v/u pi ̂

Eid^iO* CertiTcailon re^snTing Drug F/eo Vendor InlUals
WorVpieco RequtremenaCvwHSniO^il P«B»2 0f2 Palo £^1 *1^7
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certification regarding lobbying

t'" I ̂  General Provisions agrees to comply with the provlstons of
???^ c r \ Guidance for New RestricUons on Lobbying, and
\r, ITu 'Hi®' to have the Contractor's representative, as kJeniified in Sections ̂  ^ 1end 1.12 of the Gerteral Provisions execute the following Certification; •

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION ■ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Progroma (indlcalo applicet>le program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Tide IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under ntie XX
•MeCicald Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Tide VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her krtowlBdge and belief, that:

1. No Federal api^opdated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned lo
any person for Influencing or attemplmg to influence an officer or empioyeo of any agency a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Cor^ress. or an emptoyee of a Member of Congress In

owarding of any Federal corttracl. continuation, renewal, amendment or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-granlee or aub-conlrector). .

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid lo any person for
mnuenclng or attempling to influence an officer or employee of any agency, e Member of Congress
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
wnlractor). the undersigned shall complate and submit Standard Form LUL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shaD require that the language of this certification be Included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subconlfacts; sub-grents. and contracts under grants
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that on sub-recipienls shaD certify and disclose accorcllngly.'

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
jMS made or entered into. Submission of tWs certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails lo file the required
certirication shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than StO.OOO and not more than SlOO 000 for
each such failure. '

Vendor Name: /uov-V^, 2:;^

/? I/')ha
-  •- ■ ^ b

EjtfilbH 6 - CartJfication RaganSng Lobbying VenrJcr InltUls _
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMEHT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Idenllfied In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the PresWenli Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmeni.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified (n Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certrficaticn;

instructions FOR CERTIFICATION

t. By signino and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participdnt is providing the
certification sat out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the cortirication required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction, if necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health end Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish e certification or an explarwlion shall disqualify such person from participation In
this Iransacfion.

3. The certification In this clause is a material repre^ntation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it 'ts later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly'rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted if at any lime the prospective primary participant learns
that its certiricaiion was erroneous wher> submitted or has l>«ome erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

•5. The terms 'covered transaction,* 'debarred," 'suspended,' 'ineligible.' 'tower^lier covered
transaction.' 'participanl.' "person." 'primary covered transaction," 'principal,' 'proposal,' and
"voluntarily excluded,* as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Oefinitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implemenUng Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

- 6 The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered lnlo. il shall not >cnowingly enter into eny lower tier covered
iransection.vrith e person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled "Certincation Regardir>g Debarmeni. Suspension, Ineligibllity and Votunlary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by OHHS. without modification, in all lower Uer covered
transactions and in ell soticitelions for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participanl in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered irensactiori that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or invduniarily excluded
from the covered ifansaction. unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participanl may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require eslablishmeni of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certificalion required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibll F - Cartifcalioo R^qarfling Oetufmem, Suspension Vendoi Inlllals
An4 Other RetponslbllKy Mstlsrs r L.

Cuo^sn.oT.3 PopolcTJ Dele£iJ3/2o
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Infonhation of a partidpani is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudenl
f  person In the Quinary course of busir>ess dealings.
'  I .

A 0. for transactions authorized under paragrdph 6 of these Instnjctions. If a participant in e
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, deberted, IneligibJe. or voluntarily excluded froni participation in this transaction, in

PRP 79 available to the Federal govemment. DHHS may terminate this transaction
or default.

—-PRIMARY GOVEREo'tRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment.. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal'(contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rervjered against them for commrsston of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection vdth obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local}
transaction or a cdntracl under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsificatlori or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

'  11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise crimir^ally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this cehificallon; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this eppllcation/proposel had one or more public
transactions (Federal. Stale or local) terminated for cause or defaulL

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge end belief that it end its principals:
13.1. are. not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any f^eral department'or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower'tier panicipdnt further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineiigibility, ar>d
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modificalion In all lower tier covered
transactions end In all so(iciiatior\s for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: [VJ ,

Date Namo: ̂
Title: ' ^ A ' O

F - C«nJIlcotlon Regarding Ogbarmenl. Suspension Vendor Initiate.
And Other RespQRsiWttty MsnersCU'OKrsrnon) Pegs 2 o( 2 Date MbJio
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASEO ORGANgATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor idsniiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foQowIng
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscriminetion requiremenls, which may Indude:

•  (he Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 u.S.C. Section 3769d} which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under (his statute from discriminating, either in employmoni practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)} which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding urtder this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In Ihe deliver of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the RehablEtatjon Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or acliviry;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal oppodunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, pubSc accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972(20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or ecliviiies receiving Federal financial assistance, it does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 •
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of Ihe laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships wtth faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblowcr protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Natlorwl Defense Authorization
•Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) Ihe Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistletitower Prolections, which protects employees against
' reprisal for certain whistle blowing ecliviiies in corir>ection with federal grants end contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certincaticri shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmenl.

Exhibit G
Vondor InhlabM
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In the even! a Federal or State court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a nnding of
disaimlnation after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
egairist a redplent of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the Hnding to the OfTice for CMI Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services OfTice of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.i1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. Qy signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indtcaled above.

Vendor Name;

no .
Dale . Name: 0'^ ^ ^ 1^

Title:

EjtfilbHG .. . 1^
Vendor initials

n r*«v« Mvi4*aVFincl»v T'mvmM «r OewtiMM
»nawnmw» mprvactont . t j
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also knowr^ as the Pro-Childran Act of 19S4
(Act), requires lhat smoking not be peimilted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
coniracled for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,.education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal programs eiiher
directly or through Slate or local govemmants, by Federal grant, conlraa, loan, or loan.guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's servioes provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisioris of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposlllon of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor kJenlificd In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
, representative as identified In Section 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certirication;

1. By signing end submitiing ihis contraci. the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Lew 103-227. Part C. known as ihe Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Name:

Date

iS In .
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Tho Contractof identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Lew 104'191 and
with th» Standards for PrivBCy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to busir^ess associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' Shalt mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in. section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code.of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

I

e. 'Data AaareoatiGn' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Ooerations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HiTECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery end Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health'Insurance Porlabillty and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

\

1. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies asa personal representative in'accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPM by the United States
Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services. '

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Enlily. pv

3r20u Exhlbtti Coniracw inUiaH _L_V^
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I. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law* in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary • shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee. -

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology star>dard (hat renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably rtecessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Assoclale;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtqin, prior to making any such disclosure. (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held conndentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response (o a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

S/20U ExWbin Conwctof iniKoli
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-Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the 6u»nes$ Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by edditional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security

.  safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additlohat security safeguards.

/

(3) Oblioatlona and AcllvHIes of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
efter the Business Associate t>ecomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information riot provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-idenlirication;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
.  disclosure was. made;
0 Whether (he protected health informatiori was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and Immediately reporl'the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. -Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of.determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
accese to PHI un^r the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be conside/ed a direct third party t^neficlary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements Nvith Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 E*ftlbUI Contfoctof tnlllala < ■
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pursuant to this Agreemanl. with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available.during normal business hours at its offices at)
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of fecelvlr>g a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfil) its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of recelviog a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ton (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Aissociate in connection with the
Agreement, and shell not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those

3/2014
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQattons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or.limitetion(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Assodatels
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHi may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business'^Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) . Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms end conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
•Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide en opportunity for Business Associete to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe spedfied by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shad report the
violalion to the Secretary.

(6). ftftiscellanooufl

. a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. ' Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Assodate agree to take such action as rs
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to timo as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requireiments of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknovrtedges that it has no ownership rights
viriih respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. tnteroretatlon. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. ^

3/2014 EjNWtl Cont/iQOf liiiUaU
Hastui insuranca Podabliity Act
Business Assodole Agreomenl

Page S o> 6 Data4^



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D5DB10C-C391-4485-9F99-3586930BAFDA

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0504DA29-6COS-43P9-A6C6-2396A533581C

New Hampehlre Oepsrtment ef HeeRh and Human Servlcea

Exhibit i

SeoreQatiofl. If any term or coAdltlon of Ihls Exhibit I or tho application thereof to any
personfs) or-circumstance is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
coixjilions which can be Qiven effect without the invalid term or conditten; to this end the
terms end cofKlitions of this Exhibit I ere declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the prolactions of the Agreement In seciton (3) I, the
defense and indemnlTication provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditiona (P-37). shall survive the termlriatlon of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oeportment of Health and Human Sendees i\^ HjU-.
The State

Slgnaiure of Authorized Representative

vlame ohAuborl:Name orlzed Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

-Contractor

Sign^t^re of Authorized Representative
L  PL ̂

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

17 ^
Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABlLmf AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The F^eml Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime ewardees of individual
Federaj grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $2S.OOO or more. If the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modificab'ons result in a total av/ard equal to or over
$25,000, me award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requlrerT>ents. as of the date of the eward.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subsward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Heatth and Human Services (DHHS) inust report the following information for any'
subsward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of avrard

3. Funding'agency
4. NAJCS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award titie descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of p^ormance
9. Unique identrfier of the entity (DUNS S)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of ennual gross revenues am from the Federal govemment, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part'170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), end further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certncatlon:
The t>elow named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Oepertrrwnt of Health and Hurrtan Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Nanw: Xa/^.

no
Date <•

Title: ,

ExMbil J - Certncatkin Rsgtrdlng Uw Fadcril Funding ConUactor IntUb
AecDuftttblCty And Transpwncy Act (FFATA) CompUnc*
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
beiow listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS numtier for your entity is: 0^1 I A I 0 V .

2. In your business or organizstion's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (l) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contrects. subcontracts,
loans, grants. sut>^rant$, and/or cooperative egreemenls; and (2) S25,000.000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, (cans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above Is YES, please answer the fotlowing:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U'.S.C.78m(a), 7^d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES; stop here

If (he answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated ofTtcers in your business or
organization ere as fdlows:

Name:.

Name:.

Name:.

Name:.

Name:.

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount

Amount:

CUOKMa/flOM)
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

' A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Sreach* means the toss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Irrformalion, * Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incldcnr in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security' Incident
Handling Guide. National Irtstitute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information* or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance^nefits and personal information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Informalion.

Confidential Information also includes any and all informalion o^ed or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information , includes, but' is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential informalion.

4. *End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenf means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent, Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misroullng of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the .data at hsk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Infonnation
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, arxl
approved, by rheans of the StatO, to transmit) will be considered an open'
network and not,adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFi,
PHI or confidential OHMS data.

8. 'Personal information' (or 'PI') means information which can be used to distinguish
. or trace an tndividuars identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identiftable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protect^ Health Information* (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health Information* in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
PfOlected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A.' Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Informatiori.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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.  request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifyii^g DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PH)
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must t>e bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

.4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. '

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terins of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE.TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Oata betwieen applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's ericryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the interr\et.

2. Computer bisks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.'

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email la encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropt)Ox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may onlyHransmrt Confidential Data via certiT/ed ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote cortimunication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End-User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Conftdential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Conftdential Data will

be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Ccnftdentiai Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this er^, the parties must:

A. Retention

-  <1. The Contractor^ agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the' services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Stales. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computir>g, cloud service or cloud etorego capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security .monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of .NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location arid identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with, all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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\

whole, must have aggressive intrusiorvdetection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

•6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Conftdential Information on Hs systems (or its
sutycontractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and win
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanltization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, artd will provide written certificdtion to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly-
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the. termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise speclfted. within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Conndentlal Data
by means of data erasure, also Known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information llfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., (ape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems end/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core .functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, .the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will wotV. with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of'New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
compleled and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement-
(BAA) with, the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will worV with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management- Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the .Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Deparlmeni and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member ,within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Uability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
•prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monrtoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regutaUorfs regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects

IHfl?It'" ^ scope that is not less
k ! n requirements applicable to federal agencies, includingbut not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U S C § 552a) DHHS
Pnvacy Act Re9ulalion$ (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy anC Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually Identifiabia health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data arid to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the (level and scope of security requirements
establish^ by the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of information Technology
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doil/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
States Bounty Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section V|. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
secunty inciderit. or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of New Hampshire networV.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Contidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all ErKi Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above.
impJemenled to protect Confidential information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI Pi or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Conndentlal Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to

'  receive such information.

V5.L«.«p<,«.,(V09/ia ■6^,K ConlF,dorl«hi.ls
OHHS InfOrtnaiJon ( ■

Security Atquffemerrt* / /



DocuSign Envelope 10: 9D5DB10C-C391-4485-9F99-3586930BAFDA

OocuSign Envekipe 10:0504DA29-6CaS-<3F9>A6C6-2396A533581C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. iimrt disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by taw.

f. Gonrtdentia! information received under this Contract and indlviduaily
identifiable-data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physicaiiy and technoiogicaiiy secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as. weli as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
btometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at alt times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential' Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user'credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal legulatJcns until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING.

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy "Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the 'agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Nofrfication
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify incidents;

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information is involved in Inc'idents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notificalion is required, and. rf -so. identify appropriate
Breach notification' methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as welt as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
appdcable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfncef@dhhs.nh.90v

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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